
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

March 1, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Jon Draskovic, Pastor of Whidbey Presbyterian Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick's Day - Accepted by the Irish Wildlife Society

b. Honors & Recognitions

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

March 1, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Jon Draskovic, Pastor of Whidbey Presbyterian Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick's Day - Accepted by the Irish Wildlife Society

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held February 16, 2016, and Workshop meeting on February

24, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Numbers

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held February 16, 2016, and Workshop meeting on February 

24, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Numbers

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

1



i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Marathon Update by the Elks Lodge - Race Director

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Ordinance No. 1756: Issuance of Waterworks Utility Bonds
b. Resolution 16-11: Support for OHSD Economic Impact Study

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Professional Services Agreement - Feasibility Study with Carletti Architects for a New Fire

Station

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Marathon Update by the Elks Lodge - Race Director

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Ordinance No. 1756: Issuance of Waterworks Utility Bonds
b. Resolution 16-11: Support for OHSD Economic Impact Study

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Professional Services Agreement - Feasibility Study with Carletti Architects for a New Fire

Station

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Discussion of Property Acquisition regarding Wells Fargo

ADJOURN

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Discussion of Property Acquisition regarding Wells Fargo

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Proclamation in Honor of St. 
Patrick's Day - Accepted by the 
Irish Wildlife Society 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Support the Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick's Day.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Irish Wildlife Society will accept the Proclamation for St Patrick's Day as per Oak Harbor tradition. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.a.i
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Proclamation in Honor of St. 
Patrick's Day - Accepted by the 
Irish Wildlife Society 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Support the Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick's Day.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Irish Wildlife Society will accept the Proclamation for St Patrick's Day as per Oak Harbor tradition. 

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proclamation

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proclamation

3

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456531905_at.pdf


City of Oak Harbor 
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

BOB SEVERNS 
MAYOR 

PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

ST. PATRICK'S DAY 
MARCH 17, 2016 

WHEREAS, by 1776 nearly 300,000 natives of Ireland had immigrated to the 
United States; and 

WHEREAS, in 1858 Irish immigrants arrived in Oak Harbor, Washington; and 

WHEREAS, at least eight signers of the Declaration of Independence were of Irish 
ancestry; and 

WHEREAS, the Irish and their descendants have helped to enrich the quality of life 
in the United States and have served with distinction in all areas of American 
society; and 

WHEREAS, St. Patrick's Day parades and celebrations have taken place in Oak 
Harbor for over 40 years; and 

WHEREAS, the Annual St. Patrick's Day Parade will take place on Thursday, March 
17th on Pioneer Way, commencing at 4:30 pm. 

Now, THEREFORE, WE, Bob Severns, Mayor, and Councilmembers of the City of 
Oak Harbor do hereby proclaim March 17th, 2016 as St. Patrick's Day. 

Signed this 1st day of March, 2016 

Gct::---...L~ 
Bob Severns, Mayor 

4



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
held February 16, 2016, and 
Workshop meeting on February 
24, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
held February 16, 2016, and 
Workshop meeting on February 
24, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/16/2016 Minutes
2. 2/24/2016 Minutes

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/16/2016 Minutes
2. 2/24/2016 Minutes

5

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1455814855_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456431207_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – February 16, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

February 16, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Beth Munns City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Engineer Joe Stowell 

Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Chief of Police Ed Green 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pastor Jim Cutter of Church on the Rock provided the invocation, and then Mayor Severns led 
the led the pledge of allegiance. 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 

Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to excuse Councilmembers Hizon, Almberg, and 
  Mayor Pro Tem Paggao, seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously 
  approved.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 
  seconded by Councilmember Munns, and the motion was unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Community Presentations 
Development Director Steve Powers provided the Planning Commission 2015 Annual Report 

Questions and comments from the Council. 

6



Regular Meeting Minutes – February 16, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:09 p.m., no comments, closed at 
6:09 p.m. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on February 2, 2016 and Special
Meeting on February 10, 2016

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
c. Resolution 16-09: 2016 SRF Loan Ordinance
d. Special Event Permit – Race Week 2016 at Catalina Park
e. Purchase Authorization – Chevrolet Colorado Pickups
f. Purchase Authorization – Ford Police Interceptor SUV
g. Surplus Authorization – Panasonic Toughbooks
h. Freedom Properties: Letter of Intent to Exercise Option No. 2 per the Agreement to

Extend the Lease for a 3-year term
i. Signature Authority for Change Order Proposal (COP) #3 – Energy Efficiency Light-

ing Project (Ameresco)
j. Clean Water Facility – Puget Sound Energy Schedule 74 Agreement and temporary

service Agreement to underground power lines

Motion:   Councilmember Munns moved to approve Consent Agenda Items as presented, 
  motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, motion passed by unanimous vote. 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

City Administrator 

Dr. Merriman announced that the Investment Committee will not meet on February 24, 2016. 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 

City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility 
Project.   

Councilmembers asked follow-up questions regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 

Mayor 

Mayor Bob Severns addressed the issue of litter.  He then noted several current legislative is-
sues.  The Mayor then announced that Kellye Mazzoli, Executive Assistant to the Mayor, will be 
leaving the City and thanked her for her service. 

Council shook hands with Kellye Mazzoli at 6:22 p.m. and resumed the meeting at 6:23 p.m. 

Councilmembers 
Councilmember Campbell discussed issues pending with the Northwest Clean Air Committee. 

Councilmember Munns discussed AWC issues relating to the Public Records Act. 

7



Regular Meeting Minutes – February 16, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

Councilmember Servatius announced that citizens can now request City Council Meeting notic-
es via email from the City of Oak Harbor Facebook page.  Mr. Servatius addressed additional 
current community concerns.  

Councilmember Wasinger shared that she was able to meet with several Department Heads 
within the City and thanked them for their time and information. Mrs. Wasinger also announced 
that Little League and Youth Basketball will be starting soon.  She recognized Dave Laura for 
donating time to repair and maintain the ball fields.  

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution 16-07:  Countywide Planning Policies  
Development Director Steve Powers provided the staff report on this item. 

Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 6:34 p.m., no comments, closed at 6:34  
p.m. 

Resolution 16-07:  Countywide Planning Policies 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Resolution 16-07 adopting the County 
  wide Planning Policies, seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Mayor Severns called a thirty (30) minute recess for Executive Session at 6:36 p.m. to Discuss 
Review of Public Employees Performance and Wells Fargo Property Acquisition. 

Mayor Severns reconvened the meeting into Open Session at 6:57 p.m. 

No Action was taken in Executive Session. 

ADJOURN 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Munns, 
  unanimously approved. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk and 
Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

8



 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – February 24, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

February 24, 2016  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
 
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Senior Planner Cac Kamak 
 Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
 Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
 Project Engineer Brad Gluth 
 Project Engineer Arnold Peterschmidt  
 Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
 Chief of Police Ed Green 
 Human Resources Director Sara Piccone  
 Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
 Exec. Assistant to City Administrator Nicole Tesch 
 
Mayor Severns was absent. 
Councilmembers Almberg and Wasinger were absent. 

 
1.  INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES 

 
Human Resources Director Sara Piccone introduced the following new employees: 
 

Leslie Morgan – Records and Evidence Supervisor (Police) – not in attendance due to  
     previously schedule training 

Janiece Black – Program Coordinator (Senior Center) 
 David Zylstra – Solid Waste Collector I (Public Works) 
 Brian Lee – Building Official (Development Services) 
 

2.  DEPARTMENTAL BRIEFINGS 
 

a. General Update on land availability and housing  
Development Director Steve Powers provided the staff report. 
 
Questions from the Council. 
 

9



 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – February 24, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

b. Comprehensive Plan Update – Housing Element 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak provided the staff report. 
 

c. Transportation Plan Update – Draft project List 
Arnie Peterschmidt, Project Engineer, and Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre provided this update.  
 
Comments and questions among Councilmembers.  
 

d. Forest Practices Permit 
Operations Manager Steve Bebee provided the department briefing on this item. 
 
Discussion between Council and Staff. 

 
3.  PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 

 
a. Clean Water Facility – Hoffman Concrete Services  

Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works, briefed the Council on this item, and added this agenda 
item it will appear again at the April Workshop with more information. 
 

4.  EMERGING ISSUES 
 

a. Revenue Bond Issue – Clean Water Facility Interest Rates  
City Administrator and Finance Director Dr. Merriman provided the staff report. 

 
b. Appointments to County Boards for City Council  

City Administrator Dr. Merriman provided the staff report. 
 
Executive Assistant to the City Administrator/Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch provided handouts 
of the Regional/County/City Board appointments to the Council during the presentation.  

 
c. 2017 Marathon Race Director  

City Administrator Dr. Merriman informed the council that the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
for the 2017 Marathon Race Director will be published soon.  

 
d. Oak Tree Inventory  

Project Engineer Brad Gluth and Parks Manager Hank Nydam provided an update on the Oak 
Tree Inventory.  
 

ADJOURN 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:31 p.m. 

 
Notes taken by Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy 
City Clerk and prepared by Anna M. 
Thompson, City Clerk 

10



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165496 through 165668 in the amount of $1,177,914.41.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37217 through 37372.

- EFT check numbers 784 through 788.

- Payroll check numbers 98675 through 98727.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165496 through 165668 in the amount of $1,177,914.41.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37217 through 37372.

- EFT check numbers 784 through 788.

- Payroll check numbers 98675 through 98727.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

11



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

12

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1455822492_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456175083_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456355197_at.pdf


02/18/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

11:06:22AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165496 2/18/2016 0001799  ACORN PROPERTY MANAGEMENT Ref000231107 UB Refund Cst #00154125  239.26

 14.78UB Refund Cst #00155396Ref000231108

Total :  254.04

 165497 2/18/2016 0008106  CADORE, MARLON Ref000231113 UB Refund Cst #00166983  310.30

Total :  310.30

 165498 2/18/2016 0008100  CARTER, TREVA L Ref000231104 UB Refund Cst #00126250  48.83

Total :  48.83

 165499 2/18/2016 0008103  CROCKETT, CALEB Ref000231110 UB Refund Cst #00164676  15.97

Total :  15.97

 165500 2/18/2016 0008108  DOW, DIANE Ref000231116 UB Refund Cst #00167611  160.15

Total :  160.15

 165501 2/18/2016 0008098  DUQUETTE, VIRGINIA P Ref000231102 UB Refund Cst #00123411  111.75

Total :  111.75

 165502 2/18/2016 0008096  ERICKSON, SHARON Ref000231100 UB Refund Cst #00122864  111.75

Total :  111.75

 165503 2/18/2016 0008097  GERON, CRAIG OR RUTH ANN Ref000231101 UB Refund Cst #00123132  14.22

Total :  14.22

 165504 2/18/2016 0001494  HOMES FOR RENT Ref000231106 UB Refund Cst #00152669  58.53

Total :  58.53

 165505 2/18/2016 0008095  IOOF HALL Ref000231099 UB Refund Cst #00121305  137.63

Total :  137.63

 165506 2/18/2016 0000483  KOETJE AGENCY Ref000231114 UB Refund Cst #00167008  226.67

Total :  226.67

 165507 2/18/2016 0008107  KOOY (MLEEKLLC), MICHAEL Ref000231115 UB Refund Cst #00167219  101.50

Total :  101.50

1Page:

13



02/18/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

11:06:22AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165508 2/18/2016 0008102  MAKING A DIFFERENCE FOUNDATION Ref000231109 UB Refund Cst #00160027  117.90

Total :  117.90

 165509 2/18/2016 0008105  O'CONNOR, RORY Ref000231112 UB Refund Cst #00166912  210.58

Total :  210.58

 165510 2/18/2016 0008101  PEREZ, MARTIN Ref000231105 UB Refund Cst #00126314  129.31

Total :  129.31

 165511 2/18/2016 0008099  RIVERA, JOSE Ref000231103 UB Refund Cst #00123769  25.00

Total :  25.00

 165512 2/18/2016 0008104  UHL, MATTHEW Ref000231111 UB Refund Cst #00165693  128.67

Total :  128.67

 165513 2/18/2016 0000973  WALDRON CONSTRUCTION Ref000231117 UB Refund Cst #00167998  100.50

 89.72UB Refund Cst #00167999Ref000231118

 42.13UB Refund Cst #00168001Ref000231119

 38.25UB Refund Cst #00169076Ref000231120

Total :  270.60

Bank total :  2,433.40 18 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 2,433.40Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 18

2Page:

14



02/22/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

12:31:50PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165516 2/22/2016 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-766932 BLST KIT  125.48

Total :  125.48

 165517 2/22/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988339610 UNIFORM SERVICES  24.69

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988339611

 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988339612

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988339613

 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988339614

 44.80UNIFORM SERVICES1988339615

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988339616

 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988344064

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988344067

 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988344068

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988350673

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988350674

 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988350675

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988350676

 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988350677

 44.80UNIFORM SERVICES1988350678

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988350679

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988355190

 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988355191

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988361673

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988361674

 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988361675

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988361676

 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988361677

 44.80UNIFORM SERVICES1988361678

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988361679

 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988366110

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988366113

 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988366114

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988372612

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988372613

 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988372614

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988372615

1Page:

15



02/22/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

12:31:50PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165517 2/22/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK

 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988372616

 44.80UNIFORM SERVICES1988372617

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988372618

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988377070

 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988377071

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988383526

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988383527

 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988383528

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988383529

 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988383530

 95.35UNIFORM SERVICES1988383531

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988383532

Total :  1,000.66

 165518 2/22/2016 0006233  BEST WESTERN PLUS 3897 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SMITH  445.86

Total :  445.86

 165519 2/22/2016 0008123  CMC RESCUE, INC 0000327065 HARNESS  854.44

Total :  854.44

 165520 2/22/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 080429400 INMATE MEDS  11.09

Total :  11.09

 165521 2/22/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7646082 NOV 2015/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  3,474.56

Total :  3,474.56

 165522 2/22/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 123115A 2015 FORFEITED PROPERTY  479.23

Total :  479.23

Bank total :  6,391.32 7 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 6,391.32Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 7

2Page:

16



02/22/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

12:31:50PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

3Page:

17



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165514 2/22/2016 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 021916 PHYSICAL/WADE  150.00

Total :  150.00

 165515 2/22/2016 0000958  NATURAL RESOURCES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF11478 TREE SEEDLINGS  3,008.25

Total :  3,008.25

 165523 2/23/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 021816 SALES/USE TAX  51,923.42

Total :  51,923.42

 165524 2/24/2016 0000005  A-1 TOWING 58047 TOWING SERVICES  193.49

Total :  193.49

 165525 2/24/2016 0000007  AA ELECTRIC 9395 WIRE CONNECTION  3,804.50

Total :  3,804.50

 165526 2/24/2016 0000984  AGRICULTURE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF012616 LICENSE/FEE-SELDAL  58.00

 58.00LICENSE/FEE-CARROLL012616A

 58.00LICENSE/FEE-JANSEN012616B

Total :  174.00

 165527 2/24/2016 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 952-787219 PULL LINE  52.22

Total :  52.22

 165528 2/24/2016 0007320  ALLIED 100 569434 WATERTIGHT HARD CARRYING CASE  227.00

 69.99ADULT ELECTRODE CARTRIDGE573544

Total :  296.99

 165529 2/24/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36547 FEB 2016 WEB HOSTING  75.00

 15.95FEB 2016/WEB HOSTING36555

Total :  90.95

 165530 2/24/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 165123 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 165531 2/24/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0861789-IN FUEL  5,423.09

 4,323.76FUEL0870179-IN

1Page:

18



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  9,746.85 165531 2/24/2016 0004019 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

 165532 2/24/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 41008 REGISTRATION/SEVERNS  35.00

Total :  35.00

 165533 2/24/2016 0008127  BARKLEY, MARK 1 TRAVEL REFUND  37.00

Total :  37.00

 165534 2/24/2016 0008130  BAYVIEW APPLIANCE & MATTRESS 165 WASHER REPAIR  113.03

Total :  113.03

 165535 2/24/2016 0000094  BERG VAULT COMPANY 66289 RISERS  79.75

Total :  79.75

 165536 2/24/2016 0004631  BLAKE, KAY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  37.00

Total :  37.00

 165537 2/24/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2584 NAME TAGS  7.00

Total :  7.00

 165538 2/24/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82054900 STETHOSCOPE  161.39

Total :  161.39

 165539 2/24/2016 0000139  BUXTON, MIKE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  139.50

Total :  139.50

 165540 2/24/2016 0003675  CAMPBELL, JAMES TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  172.80

Total :  172.80

 165541 2/24/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 40078621 SUPPLIES  453.17

 482.57SUPPLIES744716

Total :  935.74

 165542 2/24/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 020416 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

Total :  300.00

 165543 2/24/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  15.78

 411.28NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

2Page:

19



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165543 2/24/2016 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 268.96NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 12.59NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 27.93NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 1,053.01NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 204.54NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 157.40NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 520.36NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 54.31NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 61.39NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 1,560.98NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 62.55NATURAL GAS/ANNEX8219300005

 67.32NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.71NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  4,499.82

 165544 2/24/2016 0007525  CHARGEPOINT, INC 28603 COMM-REN  560.00

Total :  560.00

 165545 2/24/2016 0007655  COBAN TECHNOLOGIES, INC 11447 EDGE HD REMOVABLE SSD  1,035.91

Total :  1,035.91

 165546 2/24/2016 0008126  CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY BL-001266 BUSINESS LICENSE OVERPAYMENT  1.00

Total :  1.00

 165547 2/24/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-90313 COMPRESSOR KIT  781.04

Total :  781.04

 165548 2/24/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-32 NAME TAGS  78.81

Total :  78.81

 165549 2/24/2016 0000234  DAVID EVANS & ASSOCIATES, INC 370737 PROF SVC/VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK  11,306.53

Total :  11,306.53

 165550 2/24/2016 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 15589 2015 PROF SVC/SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAINAGE PR 1,060.75

Total :  1,060.75

3Page:

20



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165551 2/24/2016 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 180869-00 ANTENNA  81.85

Total :  81.85

 165552 2/24/2016 0007276  DISCOVERY BENEFITS, INC 022316 PAYMENT  125.95

Total :  125.95

 165553 2/24/2016 0008132  DOUBLETREE HOTEL-SEATAC 10930905 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/SCHEER  294.00

 294.00HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/VONGREY10931015

Total :  588.00

 165554 2/24/2016 0007371  EARTHCAM, INC IN0000033549R ARCHIVING SERVICE  7,800.00

Total :  7,800.00

 165555 2/24/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 16-02568 TESTING  18.00

 380.00TESTING16-02990

 45.00TESTING16-03150

Total :  443.00

 165556 2/24/2016 0000279  EMPLOYMENT SECURITY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF945052-10-7 4TH QTR 2015/UNEMPLOYMENT  4,211.05

Total :  4,211.05

 165557 2/24/2016 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 13-475-13 PROF SVC/WWTP  46,043.82

Total :  46,043.82

 165558 2/24/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK22165 NUTS/EYES  45.58

 104.27LENOXWAOAK22228

 23.99CARTWAOAK22250

Total :  173.84

 165559 2/24/2016 0004823  FEENEY WIRELESS 30149776 PRO SUPPORT RENEWAL  730.46

Total :  730.46

 165560 2/24/2016 0007929  FEHR PEERS 105884 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR TRANSPORATION ELEMEN 24,529.86

Total :  24,529.86

 165561 2/24/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 022916 FEB 2016/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

4Page:

21



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165562 2/24/2016 0004971  FREEMAN, DENISE L 2016-15 JUMPSUITS  1,160.95

Total :  1,160.95

 165563 2/24/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 84.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 120.76CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 71.57CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 65.69CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 200.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 75.04CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 33.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  1,016.10

 165564 2/24/2016 0000330  GARDNER, TERI TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  248.00

Total :  248.00

 165565 2/24/2016 0002788  GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC SI-0107988 FIRING PINS  109.79

Total :  109.79

 165566 2/24/2016 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 3 PROF SVC/PIPELINE REPLACEMENT  2,512.41

Total :  2,512.41

 165567 2/24/2016 0000351  GRAYBAR 983315698 SUPERIOR ESSEX  313.27

 626.42SUPERIOR ESSEX INTERNATIONAL LP983461438

Total :  939.69

 165568 2/24/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 1705 MEMBERSHIP  675.00

Total :  675.00

 165569 2/24/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 637610 FIRE SYSTEM  261.98

Total :  261.98

 165570 2/24/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 168973/1 SUMP PUMP  135.88

Total :  135.88

 165571 2/24/2016 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  429.18

5Page:

22



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  429.18 165571 2/24/2016 0006452 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES

 165572 2/24/2016 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWF09 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  708,386.32

 6,100.94PROF SVC/OUTFALLOFC08

 12,739.15PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITYP14

Total :  727,226.41

 165573 2/24/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2020207 SEMI-GLOSS/BRUSH/PGP  38.13

 34.46ATHENA/POTTING2051565

 11.09CNDHNGR21625

 20.38RESOLVE/VARA SGLS QT24850

 38.01PCCOBALT3021304

 23.12LONG NOSE TL3024514

 37.34ANGLE/FLAT/TACK3024539

 28.41WB TA/SEMI-GLOSS3564444

 40.75WIRE/ELCTRCL/MIN3573838

 22.40CONST4021152

 78.07PLYWOOD4024369

 52.83STRIPS4024404

 354.28PCBLK/BP/GRDR4041515

 39.40BATTERIES/FNDRWSH41222

 68.92STRT NAT4591649

 45.94O RING/STEMP5024260

 63.37TRAY/FLAT/PAIL51427

 155.44PAINT564196

 32.58ASSMBHSRLCRT574791

 42.80MOULDING6024058

 90.67CLOROX GERM6564320

 42.28SAWZALL/GRAY6573718

 54.02HUSKY/SPRAYER/TUB8012520

 55.96ULTRAL HOSE8041822

 143.96BAT/RESPIRATOR/ROCKER8130300

 14.84COVER/FRM8591934

 29.28SAWZALL9021750

 31.06FPBVFPT9021758

 10.86GLOVES9024910

 26.01PLYWOOD9024936

6Page:

23



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165573 2/24/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

-13.77SEMI-GLOSS94778

 78.11RATCHET/STRAPS9564904

 26.03SCREWS/TANK LEVER9591882

Total :  1,817.03

 165574 2/24/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 426550 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22

Total :  93.22

 165575 2/24/2016 0000396  I-COM 16-LETAC-2 LE TAC FREQUENCY UPGRADE  47,229.95

Total :  47,229.95

 165576 2/24/2016 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15040677 TABLETS  18,153.56

Total :  18,153.56

 165577 2/24/2016 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 012216 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

Total :  166.67

 165578 2/24/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 609065-1 GRINDING/ELBOW  507.93

Total :  507.93

 165579 2/24/2016 0007108  IOWA STEAK COMPANY BL-004556 BUSINESS LICENSE PENALTY REFUND  5.31

Total :  5.31

 165580 2/24/2016 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 4TH QTR 2015 4TH QTR 2015 EXCISE PROFIT LIQUOR TAX  1,427.14

Total :  1,427.14

 165581 2/24/2016 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1535 HEPATITIS IMMUNIZATIONS  206.00

Total :  206.00

 165582 2/24/2016 0000412  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 021816 1ST QTR 2016 JOINT TOURISM  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 165583 2/24/2016 0000414  ISLAND CUSTOM UPHOLSTERY 363972 PPE REPAIRS  86.96

Total :  86.96

 165584 2/24/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 020416 JAN 2016 COLLECTION CHARGES  14,931.89

 102.41JAN 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER42438880

7Page:

24



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  15,034.30 165584 2/24/2016 0000415 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL

 165585 2/24/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114507234644 INMATE MEDS  11.17

 19.14INMATE MEDS114508236750

Total :  30.31

 165586 2/24/2016 0000438  ISLAND PAINT & GLASS 31320 PAINT  23.36

Total :  23.36

 165587 2/24/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 239587 WATER/MARINA  7.15

 14.30WATER/MARINA239828

 489.15CHLORINE240341

Total :  510.60

 165588 2/24/2016 0008085  JANSEN, JACOB TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  113.40

Total :  113.40

 165589 2/24/2016 0006362  KBA, INC 3002623 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY & OUTFALL 51,169.63

Total :  51,169.63

 165590 2/24/2016 0000476  KERR, JACK 01-16 JAN 2016/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 165591 2/24/2016 0007930  LACY & PAR 70294 PROF SVC/CITY LIMITS POSTCARDS  1,400.36

 1,609.94PROF SVC/CITY LIMITS POSTCARD PRIMT70341

Total :  3,010.30

 165592 2/24/2016 0006392  LAWLER, RONALD EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  467.00

Total :  467.00

 165593 2/24/2016 0000519  LOUIS AUTO GLASS-MT VERNON BL-003313 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  29.50

Total :  29.50

 165594 2/24/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 110705 WEED BARRIER FABRIC  316.97

 248.54PLANTERS110819

Total :  565.51

 165595 2/24/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 700774 GROCERIES  383.24

8Page:

25



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165595 2/24/2016 (Continued)0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG

 501.46GROCERIES700790

Total :  884.70

 165596 2/24/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P43490 JAN 2016 POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  462.64

Total :  462.64

 165597 2/24/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 43490 JAN 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  210.27

Total :  210.27

 165598 2/24/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608455371 LONG DISTANCE  407.42

Total :  407.42

 165599 2/24/2016 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  12.00

 167.40TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  179.40

 165600 2/24/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.18

Total :  37.18

 165601 2/24/2016 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0572151-IN CLIP BOWL/LINER  121.01

Total :  121.01

 165602 2/24/2016 0008110  MINUTEMAN PRESS 62706 WINDJAMMER PARK INTEGRATION PLAN  157.82

Total :  157.82

 165603 2/24/2016 0007786  MISSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 1000577 M110 SERIES SERVICE PACKAGE  3,474.00

Total :  3,474.00

 165604 2/24/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV129171 AIR CYL -166.46

 303.48SWITCHMV129259

Total :  137.02

 165605 2/24/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES IN1001870 GLOVES  663.59

Total :  663.59

 165606 2/24/2016 0007979  MYERS, JACK 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

9Page:

26



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  30.00 165606 2/24/2016 0007979 0007979  MYERS, JACK

 165607 2/24/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0256438 GASKET  38.19

Total :  38.19

 165608 2/24/2016 0002633  NEOPOST NORTHWEST NWDAR147571 SEALING SOLUTION  92.40

Total :  92.40

 165609 2/24/2016 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000354335 JAN 2016 MONTHLY SERVICE  243.49

Total :  243.49

 165610 2/24/2016 0000645  NORTH WHIDBEY & LACONNER 119674 ANIMAL SERVICES  154.78

 110.00ANIMAL SERVICES119806

Total :  264.78

 165611 2/24/2016 0000630  NORTHEND TRUCK EQUIPMENT, INC 1032285 FLATBED  17,507.22

Total :  17,507.22

 165612 2/24/2016 0000651  NORTHWEST REGIONAL COUNCIL 3958 MEMBERSHIP FEE  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 165613 2/24/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 265676 PRIMER/CEMENT/PIPE/PATCH/UNION/ELBOW/BUS 27.13

 1.08ADAPTER266310

-1.08ADAPTER266313

 27.12WORK BAG/SQUEEGE267114

 23.89LOPPER267180

 2.48FASTENERS267201

 3.25CAULK267246

 11.89KEYS/RINGS267259

 14.12PLUG267261

 84.92NIPPLES/VALVES/TEES267271

 4.34HOSE267279

 36.40ACETONE/PAD/HAMMERITE/FASTENERS267306

 36.90MINERAL/BRUSH267353

 17.38AIR GAP267372

 10.86KITCHEN SPRAY HEAD267375

 86.94MOE MBUS REAR267394

 22.03NEEDLE VALVE/BUSHING267395

10Page:

27



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165613 2/24/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

-9.77NEEDLE VALVE/BUSHING267398

 66.40WASHERS/NUTS/FASTENERS267436

 19.75THRD HANDLE/ROLLER COVER267441

 18.47FACE MASK SHIELD267448

 19.67FASTENERS267490

 10.11TIE WRAP/TUBE267535

 54.40FASTENERS/SHEARS267603

Total :  588.68

 165614 2/24/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-262545 FILTERS  19.70

 111.65ASSORTMENT001-263874

 161.23BATTERY001-263934

 2.16O-RINGS001-264245

 76.20FILTERS001-264246

 61.99DISTRIBUTOR CAP/BLUE STREAK DIST001-264257

 10.42AIR REGULATOR001-264312

 32.66LAMP001-264316

 50.20GAUGES001-264317

-24.87FILTERS001-264413

 4.74FILTERS001-264426

-8.09AIR TANK GAUGE001-264436

 228.27BATTERIES001-264472

 56.00CIR BRKR001-264476

Total :  782.26

 165615 2/24/2016 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 022916 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 165616 2/24/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150092 FEB 2016 COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00

Total :  11,092.00

 165617 2/24/2016 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 822012979001 EASEL/SQUARES  50.93

 8.03VELCRO822013104001

 215.98ENVELOPES/LAMINATOR822728950001

Total :  274.94

11Page:

28



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165618 2/24/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 232141 TONER  72.99

Total :  72.99

 165619 2/24/2016 0001618  PACIFIC NORTHWEST CLEAN WATER 2016-OKH MEMBERSHIP DUES  30.00

Total :  30.00

 165620 2/24/2016 0007610  PERKINS COIE, LLP 5435719 PROF SVC/CONSTRUCTION ADVICE  912.47

Total :  912.47

 165621 2/24/2016 0008124  PITSCH, ELVERA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  90.00

Total :  90.00

 165622 2/24/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  108.28

Total :  108.28

 165623 2/24/2016 0008134  PLAYGROUND BORDERS DIRECT 1600-B POLY BORDER WITH UV STABILIZER  3,312.63

Total :  3,312.63

 165624 2/24/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DR  38.92

 1,431.71ELECTRICITY/DISPLT200000881421

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 2,093.09ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 55.44ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 20.74ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 111.55ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 45.74ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 111.33ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 27.61ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFILED CT PUMP200002037261

 112.11ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 10.16ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 170.92ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 18.01ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 178.37ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 24.47ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 94.46ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

12Page:

29



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165624 2/24/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 44.67ELECTRICITY/WKITCH200005461666

 31.96ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 4,250.59ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 12.22ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 177.06ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 132.00ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 18.01ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 32.99ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 131.25ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 19.80ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 58.46ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHTS200010530240

 176.58ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 188.43ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 136.49ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 143.75ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 35.08ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 527.72ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 50.05ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 23.22ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 896.27ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 4,003.65ELECTRICITY/TREATEMENT PLANT200012425357

 15.74ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 4,648.99ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 821.26ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 169.91ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 45.16ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 292.45ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534

 825.68ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 132.65ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

13Page:

30



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165624 2/24/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 74.81ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 551.31ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 421.85ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 60.64ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 77.77ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 197.75ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 11.34ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,460.89ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 43.20ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 37.73ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 42.91ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 1,067.57ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.16ELECTRICITY/KITEST200020308330

 89.24ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 47.41ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 41.53ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 32.18ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 127.80ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 72.86ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 13.51ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 962.42ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 758.79ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 26.25ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 226.83ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 144.25ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER22000598098

 29.47ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 792.09ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003

 64.74ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 43.57ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

 126.50ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 216.22ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010458

 141.75ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

Total :  30,705.49

 165625 2/24/2016 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 022916 FEB 2016/PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,650.00

14Page:

31



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,650.00 165625 2/24/2016 0007885 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC

 165626 2/24/2016 0008128  REED, THERESA 021216 EXP REIMB  685.48

Total :  685.48

 165627 2/24/2016 0008133  RHOMAR INDUSTRIES, INC 84980 NEUTRO-WASH  605.56

Total :  605.56

 165628 2/24/2016 0002511  SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICERS, INC, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF18149WA REGISTRATION/PADRTA  495.00

Total :  495.00

 165629 2/24/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 59738 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  140.00

Total :  140.00

 165630 2/24/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  167.40

Total :  167.40

 165631 2/24/2016 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545602 FUEL  25.77

Total :  25.77

 165632 2/24/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9409385489 SHREDDING  86.32

 117.18SHREDDING9409385500

Total :  203.50

 165633 2/24/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-317937 BRAKE/OIL PADS/BLUE SLICK  305.16

 141.16OIL PADS14-317937-1

 35.89LIGHTED SAFETY BAR14-318239

 19.16GOVERNOR D-214-318597

 292.53DES CART/KITS14--318804

Total :  793.90

 165634 2/24/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 3651 TANK RENTAL  55.44

 3.41SPORTSMIX443888

Total :  58.85

 165635 2/24/2016 0000833  SKAGIT HYDRAULICS 136634 SEALS/WIPE/ORINGS  202.23

Total :  202.23

15Page:

32



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165636 2/24/2016 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00098415 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  207.00

Total :  207.00

 165637 2/24/2016 0008138  SOULE, PATRICIA EXP REIMB EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT  1,001.06

Total :  1,001.06

 165638 2/24/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW681470 CITY NOTICES  129.58

Total :  129.58

 165639 2/24/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3290721841 LTR POUCH  48.22

 16.58FLASH DRIVE3291728476

 4.23CLEANER3291728477

 23.41CARD STOCK/LETTER PAD3291728478

 82.53COPY3291728479

 196.05FOLDERS3291728480

 116.67MARKERS/HYBLK CMY CLR3291728481

 79.92COFFEE3291728482

 52.72KEYBOARDS3291728483

 65.31RING BOOK/PENCIL CUP/INK3291728485

 11.19SIGN PLATE3292644238

 39.12CLEANING/REPAIRING KITS3292644239

 58.45FOLDERS/MAILERS3292644240

 212.19TONER3292644241

 120.91STENO BOOKS/TONER3292644242

 76.60TONER3292644243

 65.09SPECIAL ORDER3292644246

 15.17PENCIL CUP3292644247

Total :  1,284.36

 165640 2/24/2016 0008135  STEPHENSON, DANIEL 1870 MOORAGE REFUND  203.64

Total :  203.64

 165641 2/24/2016 0000863  STERKEL, TIMOTHY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  90.27

Total :  90.27

 165642 2/24/2016 0006190  STOWELL, JOSEPH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  116.64

Total :  116.64

16Page:

33



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165643 2/24/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009919 BOOTS/ANDERSON  165.96

Total :  165.96

 165644 2/24/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  96.00

 96.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 132.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  324.00

 165645 2/24/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1095752 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1096371

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1096645

Total :  173.93

 165646 2/24/2016 0005273  TANDEM SERVICE CORP, INC 1137640 PUMPING FEES  266.31

Total :  266.31

 165647 2/24/2016 0008137  THELEN, MICHAEL 021216 PERMIT REFUND  50.00

Total :  50.00

 165648 2/24/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 108002 BLANKS  334.67

Total :  334.67

 165649 2/24/2016 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OFRE-41-JA9223-L001 PROF SVC/PIPELINE REPLACEMENT  418.29

Total :  418.29

 165650 2/24/2016 0008129  TROJAN WALL PRODUCTS BL-002232 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  29.50

Total :  29.50

 165651 2/24/2016 0008131  UMPQUA OATS 8952 SPRING FORWARD BREAKFAST  282.24

Total :  282.24

 165652 2/24/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W046 SHIPPING  83.94

 78.33SHIPPING0000A0182W076

Total :  162.27

 165653 2/24/2016 0007779  UNIVERSAL LANGUAGE SERVICE, IN INV-160218-6210 INTERPRETER SERVICES  9.10

Total :  9.10

17Page:

34



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165654 2/24/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001286149 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  516.70

Total :  516.70

 165655 2/24/2016 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 6010174 JAN 2016 LOCATES  95.48

Total :  95.48

 165656 2/24/2016 0008125  VENEFICK, MIKE 021116 TRAVEL REFUND  36.00

Total :  36.00

 165657 2/24/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9760162915 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,660.07

Total :  5,660.07

 165658 2/24/2016 0005920  VICKERS, JAMES 1 TRAVEL REFUND  37.00

Total :  37.00

 165659 2/24/2016 0007388  WALSTAD, TIM 90115 UNCLAIMED PROPERTY  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165660 2/24/2016 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I16005092 BACKGROUND CHECKS  24.00

 634.25BACKGROUND CHECKSI16005336

Total :  658.25

 165661 2/24/2016 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF46 PROF SVC/GENERAL  7,298.00

Total :  7,298.00

 165662 2/24/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 273759 MALE CONN  6.90

 19.23GOVENOR273965

 14.33LAMP274001

 33.78SWIVEL/RIGID/HOSE274318

 73.92ARG CO2274408

-33.87FILTERS274700

 60.84MALE RIG/SWIVEL/HOSE274938

 229.67HOSE END/SWIVEL274943

 243.42HOSE END274948

 130.20HOSE END274949

 144.30HOSE END274950

 210.90HOSE END274953

 5.10FUSE274998

18Page:

35



02/24/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 2:34:45PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,138.72 165662 2/24/2016 0001000 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC.

 165663 2/24/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48282 BUSINESS CARDS/LEE  59.79

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/SPOHN48292

 204.27ENVELOPES48323

Total :  323.85

 165664 2/24/2016 0007078  WHIDBEY SIGN COMPANY 15671 SIGNS  114.14

Total :  114.14

 165665 2/24/2016 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 4078 WIFI SERVICE  247.78

Total :  247.78

 165666 2/24/2016 0006151  WHIDBEY WEEKLY, LLC 4821 ADVERTISING  765.00

Total :  765.00

 165667 2/24/2016 0001037  WORK OUTFITTERS 50670 BOOTS/GLUTH  193.63

Total :  193.63

 165668 2/24/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701934939 DEC 2015 COPIER SERVICES  4,445.35

Total :  4,445.35

Bank total :  1,169,089.69 148 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,169,089.69Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 148

19Page:

36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the Report provided by the Engineering Division.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting update on the CWF Project as requested by Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update by City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the Report provided by the Engineering Division.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting update on the CWF Project as requested by Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report

37

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456446352_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 1, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – March 1, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation) 
• Completed pre-drilling for sheet piles 
• Started installing sheet piles 

• Concrete package design completed – Started working on GMP #7 
 

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B 

• Continue installing sheet piles 
• Proceed with development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

• Preparing for CAG meeting #3 
 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers is completing the 90% design drawings 
for the process structures associated with the treatment 
plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 30%. 30% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 
are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

 
CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete.  
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C.  
Work will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 
excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed.  
Hoffman is currently preparing a cost estimate for the 
proposed work.  KBA is providing cost validation. 

Completed 

 
  

38



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 1, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Foundation permit 
 

• Site Plan Amendment 

• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 
foundation permit. 

• The design team is revising the site plan submittal to reflect Concept 
B. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun – Driving 
sheet piles 

May 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Reviewing shop drawings and preparing for 
extension of effluent outfall 

July 2016 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in October. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

39



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 1, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The 2016 CWSRF agreement is pending signature. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 
funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 
1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City is actively pursuing issuance of bonds. 

Rates Staff is working with HDR on an update to the rates based on current funding and 
cost information. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program. 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
  

40



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 1, 2016 
4 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

The project team is preparing for the third Citizen Advisory Group meeting. 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

41

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1756: Issuance 
of Waterworks Utility Bonds

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1756

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An ordinance to authorize the issuance of revenue bonds, in an amount up to but not to exceed $50 
million dollars, to fund the construction of the City's Clean Water Facility.  The ordinance specifies the 
details of issuance, including the assignment of negotiating the sale of bonds to the City Administrator. 

The projected sale date of the bonds is schedule for June 1, 2016.  The initial issuance will be for 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7.a
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1756: Issuance 
of Waterworks Utility Bonds

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1756

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An ordinance to authorize the issuance of revenue bonds, in an amount up to but not to exceed $50 
million dollars, to fund the construction of the City's Clean Water Facility.  The ordinance specifies the 
details of issuance, including the assignment of negotiating the sale of bonds to the City Administrator. 

The projected sale date of the bonds is schedule for June 1, 2016.  The initial issuance will be for The projected sale date of the bonds is schedule for June 1, 2016.  The initial issuance will be for 
approximately $25 million, with the ability to do a second "wrap-up" issuance, if needed, at the end of the 
project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1756

The projected sale date of the bonds is schedule for June 1, 2016.  The initial issuance will be for 
approximately $25 million, with the ability to do a second "wrap-up" issuance, if needed, at the end of the 
project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1756

42

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456528367_at.pdf


 

 
51412516.8 

 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 1756 

 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, relating to the 

Waterworks Utility of the City; providing for the issuance of one or more series of 

Waterworks Utility revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

$50,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds necessary to pay or reimburse a 

portion of the costs of carrying out the Project, to repay the City’s Waterworks 

Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, 2015, to fund the reserve account, and 

to pay the costs of issuance of the bonds; fixing or setting parameters with respect 

to certain terms and covenants of the bonds; appointing the City’s designated 

representative to approve the Sale Terms for the bonds; and providing for other 

related matters. 

 

 

Passed March 1, 2016 

 

 

This document prepared by: 

Foster Pepper PLLC 

1111 Third Avenue, Suite 3400 

Seattle, Washington 98101 

(206) 447-4400 

 

43



 

-i- 
51412516.8 

TABLE OF CONTENTS* 

Page 

Section 1. Findings and Determinations ...................................................................................1 
Section 2. Definitions................................................................................................................2 
Section 3. Purpose and Authorization of Bonds .......................................................................9 
Section 4. Description of Bonds; Appointment of Designated Representative ........................9 
Section 5. Deposit of Bond Proceeds ........................................................................................9 
Section 6. Bond Registrar; Registration and Transfer of Bonds ...............................................9 
Section 7. Form and Execution of Bonds ...............................................................................10 
Section 8. Payment of Bonds ..................................................................................................11 
Section 9. Redemption Provisions and Purchase of Bonds ....................................................11 

Section 10. Refunding or Defeasance of the Bonds .................................................................13 
Section 11. Failure To Pay Bonds.............................................................................................13 
Section 12. Pledge of Net Revenue and Lien Position .............................................................13 
Section 13. Bond Fund; Payments to Bond Fund .....................................................................13 
Section 14. Flow of Funds ........................................................................................................15 
Section 15. Rate Stabilization Account ....................................................................................16 
Section 16. Additional Covenants.............................................................................................16 
Section 17. Provisions for Future Parity Bonds ........................................................................18 
Section 18. Separate Utility Systems ........................................................................................20 
Section 19. Contract Resource Obligations ..............................................................................20 
Section 20. Covenants With Respect to Tax Exemption ..........................................................21 
Section 21. Amendatory and Supplemental Ordinances...........................................................22 

Section 22. Defaults and Remedies ..........................................................................................24 
Section 23. Sale and Delivery of the Bonds .............................................................................27 
Section 24. Official Statement; Continuing Disclosure ............................................................28 
Section 25. General Authorization and Ratification .................................................................28 
Section 26. Severability ............................................................................................................29 
Section 27. Effective Date of Ordinance ..................................................................................29 
 

Exhibit A Parameters for Sale Terms 

Exhibit B Form of Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure 

 

*The cover page, table of contents and section headings of this ordinance are for convenience of reference only, and 

shall not be used to resolve any question of interpretation of this ordinance. 

 

44



 

-1- 
51412516.8 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, relating to the 

Waterworks Utility of the City; providing for the issuance of one or more series of 

Waterworks Utility revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 

$50,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds necessary to pay or reimburse a 

portion of the costs of carrying out the Project, to repay the City’s Waterworks 

Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, 2015, to fund the reserve account, and 

to pay the costs of issuance of the bonds; fixing or setting parameters with respect 

to certain terms and covenants of the bonds; appointing the City’s designated 

representative to approve the Sale Terms for the bonds; and providing for other 

related matters. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, DO 

ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Findings and Determinations.  The City Council makes the findings and 

determinations set forth below.  Capitalized terms have the meanings given in Section 2. 

(a) Waterworks Utility.  Pursuant to RCW 35A.80.010 and chapter 35.67 RCW, the 

City now owns, operates and maintains the Waterworks Utility, currently consisting of its 

existing water utility and sewer utility, as they now exist, and including any and all additions, 

extensions and betterments thereto. 

(b) Outstanding Utility Revenue Debt.  The City currently has no outstanding bonds 

which are secured by the revenues of its Waterworks Utility senior to all outstanding Subordinate 

Debt. The City currently has outstanding its Waterworks Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation 

Note, 2015 (the “Note”), the proceeds of which were used to finance the costs of certain 

improvements to the City’s Waterworks Utility. The Note is a Subordinate Debt of the 

Waterworks Utility.  The terms of the currently outstanding Subordinate Debt, including the 

Note, permit the City to issue debt constituting a lien and charge upon the Net Revenue and 

ULID Assessments prior and superior to the currently outstanding Subordinate Debt. The City 

expects to repay the Note with a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds authorized pursuant to this 

ordinance. 

(c) Plan of Additions.  The City specifies, adopts and orders the carrying out of that 

portion of the Plan of Additions defined herein as the Project. The aggregate estimated total cost 

of the Project is $110,000,000. The City does not have available sufficient funds from current 

resources, grants and state loans to pay the costs and is in need of funds with which to finance 

the remaining costs of the Project. The Project shall be carried out in accordance with the plans 

and specifications therefor prepared by the City’s engineers and consulting engineers. The City 

Council may modify the details of the Project where, in its judgment, it appears advisable if such 

45



 

-2- 
51412516.8 

modifications do not substantially alter the purpose of the Project. The cost of the Project, 

including the cost of issuance and sale of the Bonds, shall be paid from the proceeds of the 

Bonds and from other money available to the Waterworks Utility, including current resources, 

grants and loans. The average expected useful life of the Project exceeds the maximum maturity 

of the Bonds authorized herein. 

(d) Sufficiency of Gross Revenue.  The City Council finds and determines that the 

Gross Revenue and benefits to be derived from the operation and maintenance of the 

Waterworks Utility at the rates to be charged for services from the Waterworks Utility will be 

more than sufficient to meet all Operating and Maintenance Expenses and to permit the setting 

aside into the Bond Fund out of the Gross Revenue of amounts sufficient to pay the principal of 

and interest on the Bonds when due. The City Council declares that in fixing the amounts to be 

paid into the Bond Fund under this ordinance it has exercised due regard for Operating and 

Maintenance Expenses and has not obligated the City to set aside and pay into the Bond Fund a 

greater amount of Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility than in its judgment will be 

available over and above such Operating and Maintenance Expenses. 

(e) Issuance and Sale of the Bonds.  For the purposes described in Section 3, the City 

Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City and its ratepayers to issue and sell the 

Bonds pursuant to Sale Terms approved by the City’s Designated Representative consistent with 

this ordinance. 

Section 2. Definitions.  As used in this ordinance, the following capitalized terms 

shall have the following meanings: 

(a) “Adjusted Net Revenue” means Net Revenue, plus withdrawals from the Rate 

Stabilization Account and less deposits into the Rate Stabilization Account. 

(b) “Annual Debt Service” means for any calendar year for the Parity Bonds (or for 

any series thereof, as applicable), all the interest, plus all principal (except principal of Term 

Bonds due in any Term Bond Maturity Year), plus all mandatory redemption and sinking fund 

installments for that year, less all bond interest expected to be paid from the proceeds of any such 

Parity Bonds in that year. Annual Debt Service shall be calculated net of any Tax Credit Subsidy 

Payment reasonably expected to be received in that calendar year. For purposes of calculating 

the Reserve Requirement and Coverage Requirement, calculations of Annual Debt Service shall 

include all Parity Bonds then outstanding, excluding those maturities that have been redeemed or 

defeased as of the date of the calculation. If the calculation is performed in connection with the 

issuance of Future Parity Bonds, the issue date of such Future Parity Bonds may be deemed to be 

the calculation date. 

(c) “Assessment Bonds” means the principal portion of any issue of Parity Bonds 

allocated to the financing of improvements within a ULID. The allocation shall be determined as 

of the issue date of each series of Parity Bonds (and as of any date on which any Parity Bonds 

are redeemed, defeased or purchased), and the total amount so allocated shall be equal to the 

principal amount of ULID Assessments on the final assessment roll for that ULID remaining 

unpaid as of that date. Assessment Bonds shall be allocated pro rata to each maturity within a 

series of Parity Bonds. (For example, if the then-outstanding assessments equal 70% of the total 

46



 

-3- 
51412516.8 

principal amount of a series of bonds that financed ULID improvements, then 70% of each 

maturity of that series shall be deemed Assessment Bonds.) Upon redemption, defeasance or 

purchase of all or a portion of a series of Parity Bonds that includes an allocation of Assessment 

Bonds, the amount of Assessment Bonds remaining outstanding shall be reduced on a pro rata 

basis with bonds that are not deemed Assessment Bonds. 

(d) “Authorized Denomination” means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof within 

a maturity of a Series. 

(e) “Average Annual Debt Service” means, as of its date of calculation, the sum of 

the Annual Debt Service for the current calendar year and the calendar years remaining to the 

last scheduled maturity of the applicable series of Parity Bonds, divided by the number of those 

years. For purposes of computing the Reserve Requirement, the estimated amount of bonds to be 

redeemed prior to maturity may be taken into account if required under federal arbitrage 

regulations. 

(f) “Beneficial Owner” means, with respect to a Bond, the owner of any beneficial 

interest in that Bond. 

(g) “Bond” means each bond issued as provided in this ordinance. 

(h) “Bond Counsel” means the firm of Foster Pepper PLLC, its successor, or any 

other attorney or firm of attorneys selected by the City with a nationally recognized standing as 

bond counsel in the field of municipal finance. 

(i) “Bond Fund” means that special fund of the City created by this ordinance and to 

be known as the Waterworks Utility Bond Fund, to be used solely to secure and pay the principal 

of and interest on the Parity Bonds. 

(j) “Bond Insurance Policy” means a municipal bond insurance policy issued by a 

Bond Insurer insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on Parity Bonds as 

provided in such policy. 

(k) “Bond Insurer” or “Insurer” means a bond insurance company providing a Bond 

Insurance Policy for the Bonds, if included in the Sale Terms approved by the Designated 

Representative in accordance with Exhibit A. 

(l) “Bond Purchase Agreement” means an offer to purchase a Series of the Bonds, 

incorporating the Sale Terms and setting forth certain other terms and conditions of the issuance, 

sale and delivery of those Bonds, which offer is authorized to be accepted by the Designated 

Representative on behalf of the City, if consistent with this ordinance. In the case of a 

competitive sale, the official notice of sale, the Purchaser’s bid and the award by the City shall 

constitute the Bond Purchase Agreement for purposes of this ordinance. 

(m) “Bond Register” means the books or records maintained by the Bond Registrar for 

the purpose of identifying ownership of each Bond. 

47



 

-4- 
51412516.8 

(n) “Bond Registrar” means the Fiscal Agent, or any successor bond registrar selected 

by the City. 

(o) “City” means the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, a code city duly organized 

and existing under the laws of the State. 

(p) “City Council” means the legislative authority of the City, as duly and regularly 

constituted from time to time. 

(q) “Code” means the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 

applicable rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(r) “Construction Fund” means such fund, subfund or account within the Waterworks 

Utility System Fund as is designated by the Finance Director for paying or reimbursing the costs 

of carrying out the Project and paying the costs of issuance of the Bonds. 

(s) “Contract Resource Obligation” means an obligation of the City, designated as a 

Contract Resource Obligation in accordance with Section 19 of this ordinance, to make payments 

for water supply, sewer service, water or sewage transmission or other commodity or service to 

another person or entity (including without limitation any Separate Utility System). 

(t) “Coverage Requirement” means, for any calendar year, an amount of Adjusted 

Net Revenue at least equal to 1.25 times the Annual Debt Service in that year on all then-

outstanding Parity Bonds that are not Assessment Bonds. If any Assessment Bonds are 

outstanding, the Coverage Requirement shall also mean, in any calendar year, an amount of 

ULID Assessments (plus Adjusted Net Revenue available after satisfying the requirements of the 

preceding sentence) at least equal to 1.0 times the Annual Debt Service in that year on all Parity 

Bonds that are Assessment Bonds. 

(u) “DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or its 

nominee. 

(v) “Designated Representative” means the officer of the City appointed in Section 4 

of this ordinance to serve as the City’s designated representative in accordance with RCW 

39.46.040(2). 

(w) “Finance Director” means the Finance Director or such other officer of the City 

who succeeds to substantially all of the responsibilities of that office. 

(x) “Financial Advisor” means Public Financial Management, Inc., or any other 

Financial Advisor then appointed and acting as financial advisor to the City. 

(y) “Fiscal Agent” means the fiscal agent of the State, as the same may be designated 

by the State from time to time. 

(z) “Future Parity Bond Authorizing Ordinance” means an ordinance of the City 

authorizing the issuance of Future Parity Bonds. 

48



 

-5- 
51412516.8 

(aa) “Future Parity Bonds” means any and all revenue bonds or other obligations of 

the Waterworks Utility issued or incurred after the Issue Date of the Bonds, the payment of the 

principal of and interest on which constitutes a lien and charge against the Net Revenue and 

ULID Assessments equal in rank with the lien and charge securing the payment of the principal 

of and interest on the Bonds. 

(bb) “Government Obligations” has the meaning given in RCW 39.53.010, as now in 

effect or as may hereafter be amended and which are otherwise legal investments of the City at 

the time of such investment. 

(cc) “Gross Revenue” means all of the earnings and revenues received by the City 

from the maintenance and operation of the Waterworks Utility and all earnings from the 

investment of money in the Bond Fund, which earnings are deposited in the Principal and 

Interest Account, and connection and capital improvement charges collected for the purpose of 

defraying the costs of capital facilities of the Waterworks Utility. Gross Revenue shall not 

include (1) revenues from City-imposed utility or similar taxes; (2) principal proceeds of Parity 

Bonds or any other borrowings, or earnings or proceeds from any investments in a trust, 

defeasance or escrow fund created to defease or refund obligations relating to the Waterworks 

Utility (until commingled with other earnings and revenues included in the Gross Revenue) or 

held in a special account for the purpose of paying a rebate to the United States Government 

under the Code; (3) income and revenue which may not legally be pledged for revenue bond debt 

service; (4) improvement district assessments (including ULID Assessments); (5) federal or state 

grants, and gifts from any source allocated to capital projects; (6) payments under bond 

insurance or any other credit enhancement policy or device; (7) insurance or condemnation 

proceeds used for the replacement of capital projects or equipment; (8) proceeds from the sale of 

Waterworks Utility property; (9) deposits to the Rate Stabilization Account; (10) Tax Credit 

Subsidy Payments; or (11) revenue from any Separate Utility System. 

(dd) “Independent Utility Consultant” means an independent consultant experienced 

with municipal utilities of comparable size and character to the Waterworks Utility and in such 

areas as are relevant to the purpose for which he or she is being retained. Such a consultant shall 

be deemed independent if he or she is not an employee or officer of the City. 

(ee) “Issue Date” means, with respect to a Bond, the date of initial issuance and 

delivery of that Bond to the Purchaser in exchange for the purchase price of that Bond. 

(ff) “Letter of Representations” means the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations 

between the City and DTC, dated November 16, 2004, as it may be amended from time to time, 

and any successor or substitute letter relating to the operational procedures of the Securities 

Depository. 

(gg) “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

(hh) “Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, as of the date of calculation, the 

maximum amount of Annual Debt Service that will mature or come due in the current calendar 

year or any future calendar year. 

49



 

-6- 
51412516.8 

(ii) “Net Revenue” means the Gross Revenue, less Operating and Maintenance 

Expenses. 

(jj) “Note” means the City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bond Anticipation Note, 

2015, dated November 12, 2015, issued pursuant to Ordinance No. 1749. 

(kk) “Official Statement” means an offering document, disclosure document, private 

placement memorandum or substantially similar disclosure document provided to purchasers and 

potential purchasers in connection with the initial offering of a Series of the Bonds in 

conformance with Rule 15c2-12 or other applicable regulations of the SEC. 

(ll) “Operating and Maintenance Expenses” means all reasonable expenses incurred 

by the City in causing the Waterworks Utility to be operated and maintained in good repair, 

working order and condition, including payments made pursuant to contract for such service to 

any other municipal corporation or private entity for sewage treatment and disposal, water supply 

and distribution or stormwater, or other utility service, and including budget charges for the 

City’s overhead expenses allocated to the Waterworks Utility. The term Operating and 

Maintenance Expense does not include any depreciation or other non-cash expenses or capital 

additions or capital replacements to the Waterworks Utility and shall not include any utility taxes 

collected by the City. 

(mm) “Owner” means, without distinction, the Registered Owner and the Beneficial 

Owner. 

(nn) “Parity Bond Authorizing Ordinance(s)” means this ordinance and any Future 

Parity Bond Authorizing Ordinance. 

(oo) “Parity Bonds” means the Bonds and any Future Parity Bonds. 

(pp) “Permitted Investments” means any investment that, at the time of such 

investment, is permitted as a legal investment for City funds under State law. 

(qq) “Plan of Additions” means the system or plan of additions and improvements to 

and betterments and extensions of the Waterworks Utility set forth in the Capital Improvements 

Plan of the City, as adopted and in effect from time to time (most recently, approved in the 2015-

2020 Capital Improvements Plan, dated December 2, 2014). 

(rr) “Principal and Interest Account” means the account of that name created in the 

Bond Fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Parity Bonds. 

(ss) “Project” means the portion of the Plan of Additions consisting of the design, 

construction and equipping of a new Wastewater Treatment Plant and all related capital costs 

allocable thereto. 

(tt) “Purchaser” means the corporation, firm, association, partnership, trust, bank, 

financial institution or other legal entity or group of entities selected by the Designated 

Representative to serve as purchaser in a private placement, underwriter or placement agent in a 

50



 

-7- 
51412516.8 

negotiated sale or awarded as the successful bidder in a competitive sale of any Series of the 

Bonds. 

(uu) “Rate Stabilization Account” means the account of that name created within the 

Waterworks Utility System Fund pursuant to Section 15 of this ordinance. 

(vv) “Rating Agency” means any nationally recognized rating agency then maintaining 

a rating on the Bonds at the request of the City. 

(ww) “Record Date” means the Bond Registrar’s close of business on the 15th day of 

the month preceding an interest payment date. With respect to redemption of a Bond prior to its 

maturity, the Record Date shall mean the Bond Registrar’s close of business on the date on 

which the Bond Registrar sends the notice of redemption in accordance with Section 9. 

(xx) “Registered Owner” means, with respect to a Bond, the person in whose name 

that Bond is registered on the Bond Register. For so long as the City utilizes the book-entry only 

system for the Bonds under the Letter of Representations, Registered Owner shall mean the 

Securities Depository. 

(yy) “Reserve Account” means the account of that name created in the Bond Fund for 

the purpose of securing the payment of the principal of and interest on the Parity Bonds. 

(zz) “Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to all Parity Bonds secured by the 

Reserve Account outstanding at the time of calculation, an amount equal to the least of 

(1) Maximum Annual Debt Service, (2) 125% of Average Annual Debt Service, or (3) 10% of 

the original proceeds of those then-outstanding Parity Bonds. The Reserve Requirement shall be 

satisfied in accordance with Section 13(c).  In connection with any Reserve Security, the amount 

credited against the required deposit into the Reserve Account shall be equal to the maximum 

amount payable under such Reserve Security. 

(aaa) “Reserve Security” means any bond insurance, reserve insurance, reserve surety, 

collateral, security, letter of credit, guaranty, surety bond or similar credit enhancement device 

providing for or securing the payment of all or part of the principal of and interest on Parity 

Bonds, issued by an institution which has been assigned a credit rating by a Rating Agency, at 

the time that such Reserve Security is obtained by the City, in one of the three highest rating 

categories without regard to gradations within those categories (i.e., Aaa, Aa or A). Investments 

purchased with cash deposited into the Reserve Account shall not constitute Reserve Securities. 

(bbb) “Rule 15c2-12” means Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

(ccc) “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(ddd) “Sale Terms” means the terms and conditions for the sale of a Series of the Bonds 

including the amount, date or dates, denominations, interest rate or rates (or mechanism for 

determining interest rate or rates), payment dates, final maturity, redemption rights, price, and 

other terms or covenants. 

51



 

-8- 
51412516.8 

(eee) “Securities Depository” means DTC, any successor thereto, any substitute 

securities depository selected by the City that is qualified under applicable laws and regulations 

to provide the services proposed to be provided by it, or the nominee of any of the foregoing. 

(fff) “Separate Utility System” means any water supply, sewage collection or 

treatment, stormwater or other utility service or facilities that may be created, acquired or 

constructed by the City as provided in Section 18 of this ordinance. 

(ggg) “Series of the Bonds” means a series of Bonds issued pursuant to this ordinance. 

(hhh) “State” means the State of Washington. 

(iii) “Subordinate Debt” means Public Works Trust Fund loans, State Revolving Fund 

loans, the Note and any other obligations of the water or sewer utilities that are payable from Net 

Revenue on a basis that is junior and inferior to the lien and charge on the Net Revenue created 

by this ordinance in respect of the Parity Bonds. 

(jjj) “System of Registration” means the system of registration for the City’s bonds 

and other obligations set forth in Ordinance No. 789 of the City. 

(kkk) “Tax Credit Subsidy Bond” means any bond that is designated by the City as a 

“build America bond” or other type of tax credit bond, pursuant to the Code, and which is further 

designated as a “qualified bond” under Section 6431 of the Code (or under similar provisions of 

the Code providing for “direct-pay” tax credit bonds), and with respect to which the City expects 

to receive a Tax Credit Subsidy Payment. 

(lll) “Tax Credit Subsidy Payment” means the amounts which the City is eligible to 

request as a tax credit payable by the United States Treasury to the City under Section 6431 of 

the Code (or under similar provisions of the Code providing for “direct-pay” tax credit bonds), in 

respect of any bonds issued as Tax Credit Subsidy Bonds. 

(mmm)“Term Bond” means each Bond designated as a Term Bond and subject to 

mandatory redemption in the years and amounts set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement or 

each Future Parity Bond designated as a Term Bond in the applicable Parity Bond Authorizing 

Ordinance. 

(nnn) “ULID” means any utility local improvement district now existing or hereafter 

created for the acquisition or construction of additions, extensions or betterments of any portion 

of the Waterworks Utility, which additions, extensions or betterments are financed through the 

issuance of Parity Bonds. As used in this ordinance, the term ULID does not include any utility 

local improvement district created for the financing of additions, extensions or betterments either 

by methods other than the issuance of Parity Bonds or as part of a Separate Utility System. 

(ooo) “ULID Assessments” means the assessments levied in any ULID, including 

installment payments of any assessment as well as the interest and penalties (if any) thereon, less 

any prepaid assessments permitted by law to be paid into a construction fund or account. 

52



 

-9- 
51412516.8 

(ppp) “Undertaking” means the undertaking to provide continuing disclosure entered 

into pursuant to Section 24(c). 

(qqq) “Waterworks Utility” of the City means the Water System of the City and the 

Sewer System of the City combined pursuant to Ordinance No. 853 and all additions thereto and 

betterments and extensions thereof at any time made and shall include any storm and surface 

water systems or garbage and refuse collection and disposal system hereafter combined with the 

Waterworks Utility. 

(rrr) “Waterworks Utility System Fund” means, collectively, those special funds of the 

City designated as the Water and Water Reserve Fund and the Sewer and Sewer Reserve Fund, 

consisting of such subfunds or accounts as the Finance Director may deem appropriate, to 

discretely account for the costs, expenses and revenues of each component utility. 

Section 3. Purpose and Authorization of Bonds.  For the purpose of (a) paying or 

reimbursing the costs of the Project, (b) repaying the Note, (c) making a deposit to the Reserve 

Account or purchasing a Reserve Security to satisfy the Reserve Requirement, and (d) paying the 

costs of issuance of the Bonds, the City is authorized to issue Waterworks Utility revenue bonds 

in one or more series in aggregate principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000. 

Section 4. Description of Bonds; Appointment of Designated Representative.  The 

City Administrator, or in the absence of the City Administrator, the Finance Director is 

appointed as the Designated Representative of the City and is authorized and directed to conduct 

the sale of the Bonds in the manner and upon the terms deemed most advantageous to the City, 

and to approve the Sale Terms of each Series of the Bonds, with such additional terms and 

covenants as the Designated Representative deems advisable, within the parameters for the Sale 

Terms set forth in Exhibit A, which is attached to this ordinance and incorporated by this 

reference. 

Section 5. Deposit of Bond Proceeds.  On the Issue Date, as required and determined 

by the Designated Representative, proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited in the Reserve 

Account or used to purchase a Reserve Security to satisfy the Reserve Requirement.  The 

remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited in the Construction Fund and be used to pay 

the costs of issuance and sale of the Bonds and the costs of carrying out the Project. Until needed 

to pay such costs, the City may invest those proceeds temporarily in any Permitted Investment, 

and the investment earnings shall be retained in the Construction Fund and used for the purposes 

of that fund, except that earnings subject to a federal tax or rebate requirement (if applicable) 

may be withdrawn from the Construction Fund and used for those tax or rebate purposes. 

Section 6. Bond Registrar; Registration and Transfer of Bonds. 

(a) Registration of Bonds.  Each Bond shall be issued only in registered form as to 

both principal and interest and the ownership of each Bond shall be recorded on the Bond 

Register. 

(b) Bond Registrar; Duties.  The Fiscal Agent is appointed as initial Bond Registrar. 

The Bond Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, sufficient books for the registration and 

transfer of the Bonds, which shall be open to inspection by the City at all times. The Bond 

53



 

-10- 
51412516.8 

Registrar is authorized, on behalf of the City, to authenticate and deliver Bonds transferred or 

exchanged in accordance with the provisions of the Bonds and this ordinance, to serve as the 

City’s paying agent for the Bonds and to carry out all of the Bond Registrar’s powers and duties 

under this ordinance and the System of Registration. The Bond Registrar shall be responsible for 

its representations contained in the Bond Registrar’s Certificate of Authentication on each Bond. 

The Bond Registrar may become an Owner with the same rights it would have if it were not the 

Bond Registrar and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depository for and permit any of 

its officers or directors to act as members of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any 

committee formed to protect the rights of Owners. 

(c) Bond Register; Transfer and Exchange.  The Bond Register shall contain the 

name and mailing address of each Registered Owner and the principal amount and number of 

each Bond held by each Registered Owner. A Bond surrendered to the Bond Registrar may be 

exchanged for a Bond or Bonds in any Authorized Denomination of an equal aggregate principal 

amount and of the same Series, interest rate and maturity. A Bond may be transferred only if 

endorsed in the manner provided thereon and surrendered to the Bond Registrar. Any exchange 

or transfer shall be without cost to the Owner or transferee. The Bond Registrar shall not be 

obligated to exchange any Bond or transfer registered ownership during the period between the 

applicable Record Date and the next upcoming interest payment or redemption date. 

(d) Securities Depository; Book-Entry Only Form.  DTC is appointed as initial 

Securities Depository. Each Bond initially shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the 

nominee of DTC. Each Bond registered in the name of the Securities Depository shall be held 

fully immobilized in book-entry only form by the Securities Depository in accordance with the 

provisions of the Letter of Representations. Registered ownership of any Bond registered in the 

name of the Securities Depository may not be transferred except: (i) to any successor Securities 

Depository; (ii) to any substitute Securities Depository appointed by the City; or (iii) to any 

person if the Bond is no longer to be held in book-entry only form. Upon the resignation of the 

Securities Depository, or upon a termination of the services of the Securities Depository by the 

City, the City may appoint a substitute Securities Depository. If (i) the Securities Depository 

resigns and the City does not appoint a substitute Securities Depository, or (ii) the City 

terminates the services of the Securities Depository, the Bonds no longer shall be held in book-

entry only form and the registered ownership of each Bond may be transferred to any person as 

provided in this ordinance. 

Neither the City nor the Bond Registrar shall have any obligation to participants of any 

Securities Depository or the persons for whom they act as nominees regarding accuracy of any 

records maintained by the Securities Depository or its participants. Neither the City nor the Bond 

Registrar shall be responsible for any notice that is permitted or required to be given to a 

Registered Owner except such notice as is required to be given by the Bond Registrar to the 

Securities Depository. 

Section 7. Form and Execution of Bonds. 

(a) Form of Bonds; Signatures and Seal.  Each Bond shall be prepared in a form 

consistent with the provisions of this ordinance and State law. Each Bond shall be signed by the 

Mayor and the City Clerk, either or both of whose signatures may be manual or in facsimile, and 

54



 

-11- 
51412516.8 

the seal of the City or a facsimile reproduction thereof shall be impressed or printed thereon. If 

any officer whose manual or facsimile signature appears on a Bond ceases to be an officer of the 

City authorized to sign bonds before the Bond bearing his or her manual or facsimile signature is 

authenticated by the Bond Registrar, or issued or delivered by the City, that Bond nevertheless 

may be authenticated, issued and delivered and, when authenticated, issued and delivered, shall 

be as binding on the City as though that person had continued to be an officer of the City 

authorized to sign bonds. Any Bond also may be signed on behalf of the City by any person who, 

on the actual date of signing of the Bond, is an officer of the City authorized to sign bonds, 

although he or she did not hold the required office on its Issue Date. 

(b) Authentication.  Only a Bond bearing a Certificate of Authentication in 

substantially the following form, manually signed by the Bond Registrar, shall be valid or 

obligatory for any purpose or entitled to the benefits of this ordinance: “Certificate Of 

Authentication. This Bond is one of the fully registered City of Oak Harbor, Washington, 

Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016 [Series designation, if any].” The authorized signing 

of a Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has 

been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and is entitled to the benefits of this ordinance. 

Section 8. Payment of Bonds.  Principal of and interest on each Bond shall be 

payable in lawful money of the United States of America. Principal of and interest on each Bond 

registered in the name of the Securities Depository is payable in the manner set forth in the 

Letter of Representations. Interest on each Bond not registered in the name of the Securities 

Depository is payable by electronic transfer on the interest payment date, or by check or draft of 

the Bond Registrar mailed on the interest payment date to the Registered Owner at the address 

appearing on the Bond Register on the Record Date. However, the City is not required to make 

electronic transfers except pursuant to a request by a Registered Owner in writing received on or 

prior to the Record Date and at the sole expense of the Registered Owner. Principal of each Bond 

not registered in the name of the Securities Depository is payable upon presentation and 

surrender of the Bond by the Registered Owner to the Bond Registrar. The Bonds are not subject 

to acceleration under any circumstances. 

Section 9. Redemption Provisions and Purchase of Bonds. 

(a) Optional Redemption.  The Bonds shall be subject to redemption at the option of 

the City on terms acceptable to the Designated Representative, as set forth in the Bond Purchase 

Agreement, consistent with the parameters set forth in Exhibit A. 

(b) Mandatory Redemption.  Each Bond that is designated as a Term Bond in the 

Bond Purchase Agreement, consistent with the parameters set forth in Exhibit A, if not 

previously redeemed under any optional redemption provisions or purchased and surrendered for 

cancellation under the provisions set forth below, shall be called for redemption at a price equal 

to the stated principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest, on the dates and in the 

amounts as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement. If a Term Bond is redeemed under the 

optional redemption provisions, defeased or purchased by the City and surrendered for 

cancellation, the principal amount of the Term Bond so redeemed, defeased or purchased 

(irrespective of its actual redemption or purchase prices) shall be credited against one or more 

scheduled mandatory redemption installments for that Term Bond. The City shall determine the 

55



 

-12- 
51412516.8 

manner in which the credit is to be allocated and shall notify the Bond Registrar in writing of its 

allocation prior to the earliest mandatory redemption date for that Term Bond for which notice of 

redemption has not already been given. 

(c) Selection of Bonds for Redemption; Partial Redemption.  If fewer than all of the 

outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed at the option of the City, the City shall select the Series 

and maturities to be redeemed. If fewer than all of the outstanding Bonds of a maturity of a 

Series are to be redeemed, the Securities Depository shall select Bonds registered in the name of 

the Securities Depository to be redeemed in accordance with the Letter of Representations, and 

the Bond Registrar shall select all other Bonds to be redeemed randomly in such manner as the 

Bond Registrar shall determine. All or a portion of the principal amount of any Bond that is to be 

redeemed may be redeemed in any Authorized Denomination. If less than all of the outstanding 

principal amount of any Bond is redeemed, upon surrender of that Bond to the Bond Registrar, 

there shall be issued to the Registered Owner, without charge, a new Bond (or Bonds, at the 

option of the Registered Owner) of the same Series, maturity and interest rate in any Authorized 

Denomination in the aggregate principal amount to remain outstanding. 

(d) Notice of Redemption.  Notice of redemption of each Bond registered in the name 

of the Securities Depository shall be given in accordance with the Letter of Representations. 

Notice of redemption of each other Bond, unless waived by the Registered Owner, shall be given 

by the Bond Registrar not less than 20 nor more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for 

redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner at the address appearing 

on the Bond Register on the Record Date. The requirements of the preceding sentence shall be 

satisfied when notice has been mailed as so provided, whether or not it is actually received by an 

Owner. In addition, the redemption notice shall be mailed or sent electronically within the same 

period to the MSRB (if required under the Undertaking), to each Rating Agency, and to such 

other persons and with such additional information as the Finance Director shall determine, but 

these additional mailings shall not be a condition precedent to the redemption of any Bond. 

(e) Rescission of Optional Redemption Notice.  In the case of an optional redemption, 

the notice of redemption may state that the City retains the right to rescind the redemption notice 

and the redemption by giving a notice of rescission to the affected Registered Owners at any time 

on or prior to the date fixed for redemption (or such earlier date as the notice may indicate). Any 

notice of optional redemption that is so rescinded shall be of no effect, and each Bond for which 

a notice of redemption has been rescinded shall remain outstanding. 

(f) Effect of Redemption.  Interest on each Bond called for redemption shall cease to 

accrue on the date fixed for redemption, unless either the notice of optional redemption is 

rescinded as set forth above, or money sufficient to effect such redemption is not on deposit in 

the Bond Fund or in a trust account established to refund or defease the Bond. 

(g) Purchase of Bonds.  The City reserves the right to purchase any or all of the 

Bonds offered to the City at any time at any price acceptable to the City plus accrued interest to 

the date of purchase. 

56



 

-13- 
51412516.8 

Section 10. Refunding or Defeasance of the Bonds.  The City may issue refunding 

bonds pursuant to State law or use money available from any other lawful source to carry out a 

refunding or defeasance plan, which may include (a) paying when due the principal of and 

interest on any or all of the Bonds (the “defeased Bonds”); (b) redeeming the defeased Bonds 

prior to their maturity; and (c) paying the costs of the refunding or defeasance. If the City sets 

aside in a special trust fund or escrow account irrevocably pledged to that redemption or 

defeasance (the “trust account”), money and/or Government Obligations maturing at a time or 

times and bearing interest in amounts sufficient to redeem, refund or defease the defeased Bonds 

in accordance with their terms, then all right and interest of the Owners of the defeased Bonds in 

the covenants of this ordinance and in the funds and accounts obligated to the payment of the 

defeased Bonds shall cease and become void.  Thereafter, the Owners of defeased Bonds shall 

have the right to receive payment of the principal of and interest on the defeased Bonds solely 

from the trust account and the defeased Bonds shall be deemed no longer outstanding.  In that 

event, the City may apply money remaining in any fund or account (other than the trust account) 

established for the payment or redemption of the defeased Bonds to any lawful purpose, subject 

only to the rights of the owners of any other Parity Bonds then outstanding.  Unless otherwise 

specified by the City in a refunding or defeasance plan, notice of refunding or defeasance shall 

be given, and selection of Bonds for any partial refunding or defeasance shall be conducted, in 

the manner prescribed in this ordinance for the redemption of Bonds. 

Section 11. Failure To Pay Bonds.  If the principal of any Bond is not paid when the 

Bond is properly presented at its maturity date or date fixed for redemption, the City shall be 

obligated to pay interest on that Bond at the same rate provided in the Bond from and after its 

maturity or date fixed for redemption until that Bond, both principal and interest, is paid in full 

or until sufficient money for its payment in full is on deposit in the Bond Fund, or in a trust 

account established to refund or defease the Bond, and the Bond has been called for payment by 

giving notice of that call to the Registered Owner. 

Section 12. Pledge of Net Revenue and Lien Position.  The Net Revenue and ULID 

Assessments are pledged irrevocably to the payment of the amounts required to be paid into the 

Bond Fund for the payment of the Parity Bonds. This pledge shall constitute a lien and charge 

upon such Net Revenue and ULID Assessments prior and superior to any other charges 

whatsoever and on a parity with any Future Parity Bonds. 

Section 13. Bond Fund; Payments to Bond Fund.  The Bond Fund is hereby created in 

the Waterworks Utility System Fund, and is divided into two accounts: the Principal and Interest 

Account and the Reserve Account. The Finance Director may create such accounts and 

subaccounts in the Bond Fund as may be convenient for the payment of the Parity Bonds as long 

as the maintenance of such accounts does not conflict with the rights of the Owners of Parity 

Bonds. 

(a) Payments into Bond Fund.  So long as any Parity Bonds are outstanding, the City 

shall set aside and pay into the Bond Fund all ULID Assessments and, out of the Net Revenue, 

certain fixed amounts without regard to any fixed proportion, namely: 

57



 

-14- 
51412516.8 

(1) Into the Principal and Interest Account, on or before each interest payment date, 

an amount that will be sufficient, together with other money then on deposit 

therein, to pay the interest on the Parity Bonds then coming due and payable; and 

(2) Into the Principal and Interest Account, on or before each principal payment date 

(including any date on which a mandatory redemption of Term Bonds is 

required), an amount that will be sufficient, together with other money then on 

deposit therein, to pay the principal of the Parity Bonds then coming due and 

payable, including mandatory redemption amounts with respect to Term Bonds; 

and 

(3) Into the Reserve Account, an amount necessary to provide for the Reserve 

Requirement in the time and manner required under subsection (c) of this section. 

When the total amount in the Bond Fund equals the total amount of principal and interest 

with respect to all outstanding Parity Bonds to the last maturity thereof, no further payment need 

be made into the Bond Fund. 

(b) The Principal and Interest Account.  For so long as any Parity Bonds are 

outstanding, the City shall maintain the Principal and Interest Account for the payment of the 

Parity Bonds and shall make deposits therein as set forth in subsection (a), above. If there is a 

deficiency in the Principal and Interest Account to make the next upcoming payment of either 

principal or interest, that deficiency shall be made up from the Reserve Account by the 

withdrawal of amounts necessary for that purpose. 

(c) The Reserve Account; Reserve Requirement.  For so long as the Bonds are 

outstanding, the City shall maintain a balance in the Reserve Account (including the value of all 

Reserve Securities) equal to the Reserve Requirement, except for withdrawals as authorized in 

this subsection. The Reserve Requirement must be satisfied on the Issue Date of the Bonds and 

on the issue date of any Future Parity Bonds, by any combination of: (i) a deposit of cash or 

Parity Bond proceeds; or (ii) the purchase of one or more Reserve Securities in lieu of full 

funding on the issue date of such Future Parity Bonds.  In lieu of full funding on the issue date of 

such Future Parity Bonds, the City may elect to deposit Net Revenue, ULID Assessments or 

other legally available money in approximately equal annual installments so that the Reserve 

Requirement is funded no later than five years after the issue date of such Future Parity Bonds. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may establish, for one or more series of Future 

Parity Bonds, a separate reserve requirement (which may be zero), to be held in a separate 

reserve account in the Bond Fund, for the purpose of securing those Future Parity Bonds, and 

those Future Parity Bonds shall not be secured by amounts in the Reserve Account or by any 

Reserve Security credited to the Reserve Account. 

On any principal or interest payment date in which there is a deficiency in the Principal 

and Interest Account, amounts sufficient to make up that deficiency shall be withdrawn from the 

Reserve Account (or by drawing on a Reserve Security) and transferred to the Principal and 

Interest Account. If, by reason of such withdrawal, the Reserve Account balance remaining is 

insufficient to meet the Reserve Requirement, then such deficiency shall then be made up from 

58



 

-15- 
51412516.8 

the next available payments of Net Revenue and ULID Assessments after making necessary 

provision for the required payments into the Principal and Interest Account. 

Except for withdrawals described above, the money in the Reserve Account and its 

subaccounts otherwise shall be held intact and may be applied against the last outstanding Parity 

Bonds.  However, if at any time the Reserve Account (or any subaccount) is fully funded, money 

in excess of the Reserve Requirement shall be withdrawn and deposited, first, in any other 

subaccount having a deficiency in its Reserve Requirement, and second, at the option of the 

Finance Director, either in the Principal and Interest Account and spent for the purpose of 

retiring Parity Bonds or in into the Waterworks Utility System Fund and spent for other lawful 

system purposes. 

(d) Investment of Money Deposited in Bond Fund.  All money in the Bond Fund may 

be kept in cash or shall be invested in Permitted Investments maturing not later than the date 

when needed (for investments in the Principal and Interest Account) or the last maturity of any 

outstanding Parity Bonds (for investments in the Reserve Account). Income from investments in 

the Principal and Interest Account shall be deposited in that account. Income from investments in 

the Reserve Account shall be deposited in that account until the amount therein is equal to the 

Reserve Requirement, and thereafter shall be deposited in the Principal and Interest Account or 

used for other Waterworks Utility purposes. 

Section 14. Flow of Funds.  So long as any Parity Bonds are outstanding, the City 

covenants that all ULID Assessments (if any) shall be paid into the Bond Fund, and the Gross 

Revenue shall be deposited into the Waterworks Utility System Fund (and the respective utility 

subfunds therein) to be used for the following purposes only in the following order of priority: 

(a) To pay the Operating and Maintenance Expenses; 

(b) To make when due the required payments into the Principal and Interest Account 

in respect of interest on the Parity Bonds; 

(c) To make when due the required payments into the Principal and Interest Account 

in respect of principal of (and premium on, if any) the Parity Bonds, whether at maturity or 

pursuant to mandatory redemption prior to maturity. 

(d) To make all payments required to be made into the Reserve Account as well as 

any separate reserve accounts that may be established in the Bond Fund to secure a particular 

series of Future Parity Bonds; 

(e) To make when due all payments required to be made under any reimbursement 

agreement with a Bond Insurer; 

(f) To make when due the required payments to be made into any revenue bond, 

note, warrant or other revenue obligation redemption fund, debt service account or reserve 

account created to pay and secure the payment of any Subordinate Debt; and 

(g) For any of the following purposes without priority, to retire by redemption or to 

purchase in the open market any outstanding obligations of the Waterworks Utility; to make 

59



 

-16- 
51412516.8 

necessary betterments and replacements of or repairs, additions or extensions to the Waterworks 

Utility; to make deposits into the Rate Stabilization Account; or for any other lawful purpose. 

Section 15. Rate Stabilization Account.  The Rate Stabilization Account is created 

within the Waterworks Utility System Fund and may be divided into such subaccounts as the 

Finance Director may deem appropriate. Deposits and withdrawals as described below may be 

made up to and including the date 90 days after the end of the fiscal year for which the deposit or 

withdrawal will be used to calculate Adjusted Net Revenue. 

(a) Deposits to the Rate Stabilization Account.  The City may at any time, as 

determined by the Finance Director and consistent with Section 14, deposit therein amounts from 

Net Revenue and any other money of the Waterworks Utility that is available to be used for that 

purpose, excluding ULID Assessments and excluding the principal proceeds of any Future Parity 

Bonds. No deposit of Net Revenue may be made into the Rate Stabilization Account to the 

extent that such deposit would prevent the City from meeting the Coverage Requirement in the 

relevant fiscal year. 

(b) Withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Account.  The City may withdraw money 

from the Rate Stabilization Account at any time for inclusion in the Adjusted Net Revenue for 

any fiscal year of the Waterworks Utility.  Earnings from investments in the Rate Stabilization 

Account shall be deposited in that account and shall not be included as Adjusted Net Revenue 

unless and until withdrawn from that account. 

(c) Investment of Money in Rate Stabilization Account.  Earnings from investments in 

the Rate Stabilization Account shall be retained in that account and shall not be included as Net 

Revenue or Adjusted Net Revenue unless and until withdrawn from that account as provided 

herein. The City may at any time provide by resolution or ordinance that earnings are to be 

deposited periodically into the Waterworks Utility System Fund and are to be included as Net 

Revenue in the year of deposit. 

Section 16. Additional Covenants.  For so long as any of the Bonds are outstanding, 

the City covenants and agrees as follows: 

(a) Operation and Maintenance.  The City will at all times maintain, preserve and 

keep the properties of the Waterworks Utility in good repair, working order and condition, will 

make all necessary and proper additions, betterments, renewals and repairs thereto, and 

improvements, replacements and extensions thereof, and will at all times operate or cause to be 

operated the properties of the Waterworks Utility and the business in connection therewith in an 

efficient manner and at a reasonable cost. 

(b) Establishment and Collection of Rates and Charges.  The City will establish, 

maintain and collect rates and charges for all services and facilities provided by the Waterworks 

Utility which will be fair and nondiscriminatory, and will adjust those rates and charges from 

time to time so that: 

(1) The Gross Revenue of the Waterworks Utility will at all times be sufficient to (i) 

pay all Operating and Maintenance Expenses on a current basis, (ii) make all 

payments into the Bond Fund and the accounts therein when due, and (iii) pay all 

60



 

-17- 
51412516.8 

taxes (or payments in lieu thereof), assessments or other governmental charges 

lawfully imposed on the Waterworks Utility and any and all other amounts which 

the City may now or hereafter become obligated to pay from the Gross Revenue 

by law or contract; and 

(2) The Adjusted Net Revenue in each calendar year will be at least equal to the 

Coverage Requirement. 

The calculation of the Coverage Requirement set forth above, and the City’s compliance 

therewith, may be made solely with reference to this ordinance without regard to future changes 

in generally accepted accounting principles.  If the City has changed one or more of the 

accounting principles used in the preparation of its financial statements, because of a change in 

generally accepted accounting principles or otherwise, then an event of default relating to this 

section shall not be considered an Event of Default (as described in Section 22) if the Coverage 

Requirement ratio would have been complied with had the City continued to use those 

accounting principles employed at the date of the most recent audited financial statements prior 

to the date of this ordinance. 

(c) Collection of Delinquent Accounts.  On at least an annual basis, the City will 

determine all accounts that are delinquent and will take all necessary action to enforce payment 

of such accounts against those property owners whose accounts are delinquent. 

(d) No Free Service.  Except to aid the poor or infirm, to provide for resource 

conservation or to provide for the proper handling of hazardous materials, or otherwise permitted 

by State law, the City will not furnish or supply or permit the furnishing or supplying of any 

service or facility in connection with the operation of the Waterworks Utility free of charge to 

any person, firm or corporation, public or private, other than the City. 

(e) Sale or Disposition of the Waterworks Utility.  The City will not sell or otherwise 

dispose of the Waterworks Utility in its entirety unless, simultaneously with such sale or other 

disposition, all then-outstanding Parity Bonds are redeemed or defeased in accordance with this 

ordinance. Furthermore, the City will not sell, lease, mortgage or in any manner encumber or 

otherwise dispose of any part of the Waterworks Utility that exceeds 5% of the net utility plant 

of the Waterworks Utility, unless provision is made for its replacement or for payment into the 

Bond Fund of the greatest of the following: 

(1) An amount which will be in the same proportion to the net amount of Parity 

Bonds then outstanding (defined as the total amount of the Parity Bonds less the 

amount of cash and investments in the Bond Fund) as the Gross Revenue derived 

from the portion of the Waterworks Utility to be sold or disposed of bears to the 

total Gross Revenue for the preceding year; 

(2) An amount which will be in the same proportion to the net amount of Parity 

Bonds then outstanding (as defined above) as the Net Revenue from the portion of 

the Waterworks Utility to be sold or disposed of bears to the total Net Revenue 

for the preceding year; or 

61



 

-18- 
51412516.8 

(3) An amount which will be in the same proportion to the net amount of Parity 

Bonds then outstanding (as defined above) as the depreciated cost value of the 

facilities sold or disposed of bears to the depreciated cost value of the entire 

Waterworks Utility immediately prior to such sale or disposition. 

Nothing in the foregoing limits the City’s discretion to enter into contracts for the sale of 

water and sewer capacity, to sell or otherwise dispose of the Seaplane Base Treatment Lagoon, 

to demolish the existing RBC plant, or sell or otherwise dispose of any of the works, plant, 

properties or facilities of the Waterworks Utility (or any real or personal property comprising a 

part of the same) that is unserviceable, inadequate, obsolete or unfit to be used, or no longer 

necessary, material to or useful to the operation of the Waterworks Utility without the 

requirement that the City retire a portion of the Parity Bonds. In no event shall proceeds of any 

such sale or disposal be treated as Gross Revenue for purposes of this ordinance. 

(f) Books and Accounts.  The City will maintain complete books and records relating 

to the operation of the Waterworks Utility and its financial affairs, and will cause such books and 

records to be audited annually, and cause to be prepared an annual financial and operating 

statement, which shall be provided to any owner of Parity Bonds upon request. 

(g) Insurance.  The City will at all times carry fire and such other forms of insurance 

on such of the buildings, equipment, facilities and properties of the Waterworks Utility as are 

ordinarily carried on such buildings, equipment, facilities, and properties by utilities engaged in 

the operation of similar utility systems to the full insurable value thereof, and also will carry 

adequate public liability insurance at all times. The City may self-insure or participate in a joint 

intergovernmental insurance pool or similar plan, and the cost of that insurance or self-insurance 

shall be considered a part of Operating and Maintenance Expense. 

(h) ULID Assessments.  The City will promptly collect all ULID Assessments and 

deposit such collections into the Bond Fund to pay or secure the principal of and interest on any 

Parity Bonds without those ULID Assessments being particularly allocated to any particular 

series of Parity Bonds. 

Section 17. Provisions for Future Parity Bonds.  The City may issue Future Parity 

Bonds secured by a lien and charge on the Net Revenues and ULID Assessments on a parity with 

the Bonds if and only if the following conditions are met and complied with at the time of 

issuance of those proposed Future Parity Bonds.  Nothing contained herein shall prevent the City 

from issuing revenue bonds that are a charge upon the Gross Revenue of the City subordinate to 

the lien and charge for the payment of Parity Bonds or from pledging the payment of utility local 

improvement district assessments into a bond redemption fund created for the payment of the 

principal of and interest on Subordinate Debt, as long as such utility local improvement district 

assessments are levied for improvements constructed from the proceeds of that Subordinate 

Debt. Neither shall anything contained in this ordinance prevent the City from issuing revenue 

obligations to refund maturing Parity Bonds for the payment of which money is not otherwise 

available. 

(a) Secured by Bond Fund.  The Future Parity Bond Authorizing Ordinance must 

provide for the payment of the principal thereof and interest thereon out of the Bond Fund and 

62



 

-19- 
51412516.8 

must require that all ULID Assessments imposed in connection with those Future Parity Bonds 

(if any) will be paid directly into the Bond Fund. 

(b) No Bond Fund Deficiencies; Reserve Requirement Met.  At the time of issuance 

of such Future Parity Bonds, there may not be any deficiency in the Principal and Interest 

Account in the Bond Fund, and unless a separate reserve is provided for in accordance 

Section 13(c) of this ordinance, the applicable Future Parity Bond Authorizing Ordinance must 

provide for the deposit into the Reserve Account of amounts necessary to fully fund the Reserve 

Requirement in accordance with Section 13 of this ordinance. 

(c) Coverage Requirement Met.  At the time of the issuance of such Future Parity 

Bonds, the City must have on file, either: 

(1) A certificate of the Finance Director showing that, in his or her professional 

opinion, the annual Net Revenue available for debt service on the Parity Bonds 

then outstanding and the Future Parity Bonds proposed to be issued shall, for each 

year, be at least equal to the Coverage Requirement. In making such certification, 

the Finance Director shall use the Net Revenue for any 12 consecutive calendar 

months out of the immediately preceding 24 consecutive months and shall assume 

that (i) the proposed Future Parity Bonds will remain outstanding to their 

scheduled maturities, (ii) no deposits will be made to or withdrawals from the 

Rate Stabilization Account, and (iii) any Parity Bonds to be refunded by the 

proposed Future Parity Bonds are no longer outstanding. The following 

adjustments may be made to the historical net operating revenue:  

(i) Any rate change that has taken place or been approved may be reflected; 

(ii) Revenue may be added from customers actually added to the Waterworks 

Utility subsequent to the 12-month base period; and 

(iii) A full year’s revenue may be included from any customer being served, 

but who has not been receiving service for the full period of operation 

used as a basis for the certificate. 

(2) A certificate from an Independent Utility Consultant showing that, in his or her 

professional opinion, the annual Net Revenue available for debt service on the 

Parity Bonds then outstanding and the Future Parity Bonds proposed to be issued 

shall, for each year, be at least equal to the Coverage Requirement. In making 

such certification, the Net Revenue for any 12 consecutive calendar months out of 

the immediately preceding 24 consecutive months shall be used, and the 

following adjustments may be made to the historical net operating revenue: 

(i) Any rate change that has taken place or been approved may be reflected; 

(ii) Revenue may be added from customers actually added to the Waterworks 

Utility subsequent to the 12-month base period; 

63



 

-20- 
51412516.8 

(iii) Revenue may be added from customers to be served by the improvements 

being constructed out of the proceeds of the Future Parity Bonds to be 

issued; 

(iv) A full year’s revenue may be included from any customer being served, 

but who has not been receiving service for the full period of operation 

used as a basis for the certificate; 

(v) Actual or reasonably anticipated changes to the Operating and 

Maintenance Expenses subsequent to such 12-month period shall be added 

or deducted, as is applicable; and 

(vi) Deposits to and withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Account will be 

made only in accordance with the City’s adopted financial policies. 

(d) No Certificate Required for Certain Issues.  If the sole purpose of the proposed 

Future Parity Bonds is to refund then-outstanding Parity Bonds (and to pay costs of issuance and 

to provide for the Reserve Requirement), no coverage certificate is required under paragraph (c) 

if, as result of the issuance of those Future Parity Bonds (1) the Annual Debt Service on the 

Future Parity Bonds to be issued is not increased by more than $5,000 over the Annual Debt 

Service for that year of the bonds being refunded, and (2) the various annual maturities of the 

proposed Future Parity Bonds will not extend more than one year longer than the Parity Bonds 

being refunded. Furthermore, no coverage certificate is required in connection with the issuance 

of Future Parity Bonds if the amount of such bonds proposed to be issued does not exceed the 

ULID Assessments levied in support of such Future Parity Bond issue by more than $5,000 plus 

any amount of the proceeds of such Future Parity Bonds deposited in the Reserve Account. 

Section 18. Separate Utility Systems.  The City may at any time create, acquire, 

construct, finance, own and operate one or more systems for water supply, sewer service, water, 

sewage or stormwater transmission, treatment or other commodity or utility service, which 

systems are separate from and in addition to the Waterworks Utility. The revenue of that 

Separate Utility System, and any utility local improvement district assessments payable solely 

with respect to improvements to a Separate Utility System, shall not be included in the Gross 

Revenue and may be pledged to the payment of revenue obligations issued to purchase, 

construct, condemn or otherwise acquire or expand the Separate Utility System. Neither the 

Gross Revenue nor the Net Revenue may be pledged to the payment of any obligations of a 

Separate Utility System except that the Net Revenue may be pledged on a basis subordinate to 

the lien of the Parity Bonds. 

Section 19. Contract Resource Obligations.  The City may at any time enter into one 

or more Contract Resource Obligations for the acquisition, from facilities to be constructed or 

improved by the use of payments under such Contract Resource Obligations, of water supply; 

sewer service; water or sewer treatment, transmission; or any other commodity or service 

relating to the Waterworks Utility, as follows: 

(a) The City may agree under a contract containing a Contract Resource Obligation 

that all payments in respect of that Contract Resource Obligation (including payments prior to 

64



-21- 
51412516.8 

the time that water or wastewater service is being provided, or during a suspension or after 

termination of supply or service) shall be deemed an Operating and Maintenance Expense, so 

long as the payments required to be made under the Contract Resource Obligation are not subject 

to acceleration and the following additional requirements are met at the time such obligation is 

designated as a Contract Resource Obligation: 

(1) No event of default has occurred and is continuing under the terms of any debt 

obligation of the City in respect of the Waterworks Utility; and 

(2) The City has obtained a certificate of an Independent Utility Consultant stating 

that in its professional opinion: (i) the payments to be made by the City in 

connection with the Contract Resource Obligation are reasonable for the service 

rendered; (ii) the source of any new supply, and any facilities to be constructed to 

provide the supply or transmission, are sound from a supply or planning 

standpoint, are technically and economically feasible in accordance with prudent 

utility practice, and are likely to provide service no later than a date set forth in 

the certification; and (iii) the Net Revenue will be sufficient to meet the Coverage 

Requirement for each of the five calendar years following the calendar year in 

which the Contract Resource Obligation is incurred, where the calculation of Net 

Revenue (A) takes into account the adjustments permitted in connection with a 

coverage certification given under the conditions for Future Parity Bonds, and (B) 

adjusts the Operating and Maintenance Expenses by the consultant’s estimate of 

the payments to be made in accordance with the Contract Resource Obligation. 

(b) Nothing in this section shall prevent the City from entering into agreements for 

the acquisition of water supply, transmission or other commodity or service relating to the 

Waterworks Utility from then-existing facilities and from treating those payments as an 

Operating and Maintenance Expense. Nothing in this section shall prevent the City from entering 

into other agreements for the acquisition of water supply, transmission or other commodity or 

service from facilities to be constructed and from agreeing to make payments with respect 

thereto, such payments constituting Subordinate Obligations until such time as the facilities are 

placed in service. 

Section 20. Covenants With Respect to Tax Exemption. 

(a) Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on Bonds.  The City covenants that if 

it determines to sell the Bonds (or any Series of the Bonds) as Tax Exempt Bonds, it will take all 

actions necessary to prevent interest on those Bonds from being included in gross income for 

federal income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor make or permit any use of 

proceeds of those Bonds or other funds of the City treated as proceeds of those Bonds that will 

cause interest on those Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 

The City also covenants that it will, to the extent the arbitrage rebate requirements of Section 148 

of the Code are applicable to the Bonds, take all actions necessary to comply (or to be treated as 

having complied) with those requirements in connection with the Bonds. 

(b) Post-Issuance Tax Compliance.  The Finance Director is authorized and directed 

to review and update the City’s written procedures to facilitate compliance by the City with the 

65



-22- 
51412516.8 

covenants in this ordinance and the applicable requirements of the Code that must be satisfied 

after the Issue Date to prevent interest on the Bonds from being included in gross income for 

federal tax purposes. 

Section 21. Amendatory and Supplemental Ordinances.  This ordinance shall not be 

modified or amended in any respect subsequent to the initial issuance of the Bonds, except as 

provided in and in accordance with and subject to the provisions of this section. For purposes of 

this provision, the passage of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of Future Parity Bonds shall 

not be considered an amendatory or supplemental ordinance. 

(a) Certain Amendatory or Supplemental Ordinances Permitted Without Bond Owner 

Consent.  The City, from time to time, and at any time, without the consent of or notice to the 

registered owners of the Parity Bonds, may pass amendatory or supplemental ordinances as set 

forth in this subsection (a).  Before passing any such amendatory or supplemental ordinance, the 

City must have delivered to it an opinion of Bond Counsel, stating that such ordinance is 

authorized or permitted by this ordinance and, upon its effective date, will be valid and binding 

upon the City in accordance with its terms and will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes of interest on any tax-exempt Parity Bonds then 

outstanding.  The permitted purposes under this subsection (a) are: 

(1) To cure any formal defect, omission, inconsistency or ambiguity in this ordinance 

in a manner not adverse to the owner of any Parity Bond; 

(2) To impose upon the Bond Registrar (or a bond trustee, if any), with its consent, 

any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority, security, liabilities or duties 

which may lawfully be granted, conferred or imposed and which are not contrary 

to or inconsistent with this ordinance as theretofore in effect; 

(3) To add to the covenants and agreements of, and limitations and restrictions upon, 

the City in this ordinance, other covenants, agreements, limitations and 

restrictions to be observed by the City which are not contrary or inconsistent with 

this ordinance as theretofore in effect; 

(4) To confirm, as further assurance, any pledge under this ordinance (and the 

subjection to any claim, lien or pledge created or to be created by this ordinance) 

of any other money, securities or funds; 

(5) To authorize different denominations of the Bonds and to make correlative 

amendments and modifications to this ordinance regarding exchangeability of 

Bonds of different authorized denominations, redemptions of portions of Bonds of 

particular authorized denominations and similar amendments and modifications of 

a technical nature; 

(6) To amend or supplement this ordinance in any other respect which is not 

materially adverse to the registered owners of the Parity Bonds and which does 

not involve a change described in subsections (b) or (c) of this section; and 

66



 

-23- 
51412516.8 

(7) To maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds from 

federal income taxation in light of a change in federal law, regulations or rulings. 

(b) Amendatory or Supplemental Ordinances Requiring Consent of Registered 

Owners of 60% of Parity Bonds Outstanding.  In addition to any ordinance permitted pursuant to 

paragraph (a) and subject to the terms and conditions contained in subsection (c) and not 

otherwise, the City, upon the consent of registered owners of not less than 60% in aggregate 

principal amount of the Parity Bonds then outstanding, shall have the right from time to time to 

consent to and approve any amendatory or supplemental ordinance deemed necessary or 

desirable by the City. Such an ordinance may amend or  supplement, in any particular, any of the 

terms or provisions contained in this ordinance. If at any time the City passes an amendatory or 

supplemental ordinance under this subsection (b), the effective date shall be conditioned on the 

following: 

(1) The City must cause notice of the amendatory or supplemental ordinance to be 

given by first-class United States mail to all registered owners of any then 

outstanding Parity Bonds and to each Rating Agency. Such notice shall briefly 

summarize the ordinance and shall state that a copy is available for review by 

request or on the City’s website. 

(2) The ordinance may go into effect upon receipt by the City of (i) the consents, in 

writing, of the required percentage of registered owners of the Parity Bonds, and 

(ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that (A) such ordinance is permitted 

by this ordinance, (B) upon its effective date it will be valid and binding upon the 

City in accordance with its terms, and (C) it will not adversely affect the 

exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on any 

tax-exempt Parity Bonds then outstanding. 

(c) Amendatory or Supplemental Ordinances Requiring Consent of All Registered 

Owners.  Unless approved in writing by the registered owners of all Parity Bonds then 

outstanding, nothing contained in this section shall permit, or be construed as permitting: 

(1) a change in the times, amounts or currency of payment of the principal of or 

interest on any outstanding Parity Bond or a reduction in the principal amount or 

redemption price of any outstanding Parity Bond or a change in the redemption 

price of any outstanding Parity Bond or a change in the method of determining the 

rate of interest thereon; 

(2) a preference of priority of any Parity Bonds or any other bond or bonds, or 

(3) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of any Parity Bond. 

(d) Effect of Passage of Amendatory or Supplemental Ordinance.  Upon the adoption 

of the amendatory or supplemental ordinance pursuant to the provisions of this section, this 

ordinance shall be, and shall be deemed to be, amended and supplemented accordingly. No 

owner of outstanding Parity Bonds shall have any right (1) to object to the passage of such 

ordinance, (2) to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein or the operation 

thereof, (3) in any manner to question the propriety of the passage thereof, or (4) to enjoin or 

67



 

-24- 
51412516.8 

restrain the City from passing the same or taking any action pursuant thereto. The respective 

rights, duties and obligations under this ordinance of the City, the Bond Registrar and all 

registered owners of Parity Bonds, shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced under 

this ordinance subject in all respects to such supplements and amendments. 

Section 22. Defaults and Remedies. 

(a) Events of Default.  The following shall constitute “Events of Default” with respect 

to the Bonds: 

(1) If a default is made in the payment of the principal of or interest on any of the 

Bonds when the same shall become due and payable; or 

(2) If the City defaults in the observance and performance of any other of its 

covenants, conditions and agreements set forth in this ordinance and such default 

or defaults have continued for a period of six months after they have received 

from the Bondowners’ Trustee (as defined below) or from the registered owners 

of not less than 25% in outstanding principal amount of the Parity Bonds, a 

written notice specifying and demanding the cure of such default.  However, if the 

default in the observance and performance of any other of the covenants, 

conditions and agreements is one which cannot be completely remedied within 

the six month period, it shall not be an Event of Default with respect to the Bonds 

as long as the City has taken active steps within 90 days to remedy the default and 

is diligently pursuing such remedy; or 

(3) If the City files a petition in bankruptcy or is placed in receivership under any 

state or federal bankruptcy or insolvency law. 

(b) Bondowners’ Trustee.  So long as such Event of Default has not been remedied, a 

bondowners’ trustee (the “Bondowners’ Trustee”) may be appointed by the registered owners of 

25% in principal amount of the Parity Bonds then outstanding, by an instrument or concurrent 

instruments in writing signed and acknowledged by such registered owners of the Parity Bonds 

or by their attorneys-in-fact, duly authorized and delivered to such Bondowners’ Trustee, and 

after notice of such appointment has been delivered to the City. That appointment shall become 

effective immediately upon acceptance thereof by the Bondowners’ Trustee. Any Bondowners’ 

Trustee must be a bank or trust company organized under the laws of the State of Washington or 

the State of New York or a national banking association. The bank or trust company acting as 

Bondowners’ Trustee may be removed at any time, and a successor Bondowners’ Trustee may 

be appointed, by the registered owners of a majority in principal amount of the Parity Bonds, by 

an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed and acknowledged by such registered 

owners of the Bonds or by their attorneys-in-fact duly authorized. The Bondowners’ Trustee may 

require such security and indemnity as may be reasonable against the costs, expenses and 

liabilities that may be incurred in the performance of its duties. If any Event of Default is, in the 

sole judgment of the Bondowners’ Trustee, cured and the Bondowners’ Trustee furnishes to the 

City a certificate so stating, that Event of Default shall be conclusively deemed to be cured and 

the City, the Bondowners’ Trustee and the registered owners of the Parity Bonds shall be 

restored to the same rights and position which they would have held if no Event of Default had 

68



 

-25- 
51412516.8 

occurred. The Bondowners’ Trustee appointed in the manner herein provided, and each 

successor thereto, is declared to be a trustee for the registered owners of all the Parity Bonds and 

is empowered to exercise all the rights and powers herein conferred on the Bondowners’ Trustee. 

(c) Suits at Law or in Equity.  Upon the happening of an Event of Default and during 

the continuation thereof, the Bondowners’ Trustee may (and, upon the written request of the 

registered owners of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Parity Bonds outstanding, 

must) take such steps and institute such suits, actions or other proceedings, all as it may deem 

appropriate for the protection and enforcement of the rights of the registered owners of the Parity 

Bonds, to collect any amounts due and owing to or from the City, or to obtain other appropriate 

relief, and may enforce the specific performance of any covenant, agreement or condition 

contained in this ordinance or in any of the Parity Bonds. 

Any action, suit or other proceedings instituted by the Bondowners’ Trustee hereunder 

shall be brought in its name as trustee for the Bondowners and all such rights of action upon or 

under any of the Parity Bonds or the provisions of this ordinance may be enforced by the 

Bondowners’ Trustee without the possession of any of those Parity Bonds and without the 

production of the same at any trial or proceedings relative thereto except where otherwise 

required by law. Any such suit, action or proceeding instituted by the Bondowners’ Trustee shall 

be brought for the ratable benefit of all of the registered owners of those Parity Bonds, subject to 

the provisions of this ordinance. The respective registered owners of the Parity Bonds, by taking 

and holding the same, shall be conclusively deemed irrevocably to appoint the Bondowners’ 

Trustee the true and lawful trustee of the respective registered owners of those Parity Bonds, 

with authority to institute any such action, suit or proceeding; to receive as trustee and deposit in 

trust any sums becoming distributable on account of those Parity Bonds; to execute any paper or 

documents for the receipt of money; and to do all acts with respect thereto that the registered 

owner himself or herself might have done in person. Nothing herein shall be deemed to authorize 

or empower the Bondowners’ Trustee to consent to accept or adopt, on behalf of any registered 

owner of the Parity Bonds, any plan of reorganization or adjustment affecting the Parity Bonds 

or any right of any registered owner thereof, or to authorize or empower the Bondowners’ 

Trustee to vote the claims of the registered owners thereof in any receivership, insolvency, 

liquidation, bankruptcy, reorganization or other proceeding to which the City is a party. 

(d) No Acceleration.  Nothing contained in this Section 22 shall, in any event or 

under any circumstance, be deemed to authorize the acceleration of maturity of principal of the 

Parity Bonds. The remedy of acceleration is expressly denied to the owners of the Parity Bonds 

under any circumstances including, without limitation, upon the occurrence and continuance of 

an Event of Default. 

(e) Application of Money Collected by Bondowners’ Trustee.  Any money collected 

by the Bondowners’ Trustee at any time pursuant to this section shall be applied in the following 

order of priority: 

(1) First, to the payment of the charges, expenses, advances and compensation of the 

Bondowners’ Trustee and the charges, expenses, counsel fees, disbursements and 

compensation of its agents and attorneys. 

69



 

-26- 
51412516.8 

(2) Second, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of 

interest then due on the Parity Bonds in the order of maturity of such installments 

and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or 

installments maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, 

according to the amounts due thereon to the persons entitled thereto, without any 

discrimination or preference. 

(3) Third, to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal 

amounts of any Parity Bonds which shall have become due (other than Parity 

Bonds previously called for redemption for the payment of which money is held 

pursuant to the provisions hereto), whether at maturity or by proceedings for 

redemption or otherwise, in the order of their due dates and, if the amount 

available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the principal amounts due on the 

same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the principal amounts 

due thereon to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or 

preference. 

(f) Duties and Obligations of Bondowners’ Trustee.  The Bondowners’ Trustee shall 

not be liable except for the performance of such duties as are specifically set forth herein.  

During an Event of Default, the Bondowners’ Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and 

powers vested in it hereby, and shall use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise, as a 

prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own 

affairs. The Bondowners’ Trustee shall have no liability for any act or omission to act hereunder 

except for the Bondowners’ Trustee’s own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act or its 

own willful misconduct. The duties and obligations of the Bondowners’ Trustee shall be 

determined solely by the express provisions of this ordinance, and no implied powers, duties or 

obligations of the Bondowners’ Trustee shall be read into this ordinance. The Bondowners’ 

Trustee shall not be required to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur individual 

liability in the performance of any of its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers as 

the Bondowners’ Trustee, except as may result from its own negligent action, its own negligent 

failure to act or its own willful misconduct. The Bondowners’ Trustee shall not be bound to 

recognize any person as a registered owner of any Bond until his or her title thereto, if disputed, 

has been established to its reasonable satisfaction. The Bondowners’ Trustee may consult with 

counsel and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection 

in respect of any action taken or suffered by it hereunder in good faith and in accordance with the 

opinion of such counsel.  The Bondowners’ Trustee shall not be answerable for any neglect or 

default of any person, firm or corporation employed and selected by it with reasonable care. 

(g) Suits by Individual Bondowners Restricted.  Neither the registered owner nor the 

beneficial owner of any one or more of Parity Bonds shall have any right to institute any action, 

suit or proceeding at law or in equity for the enforcement of same unless: 

(1) an Event of Default has happened and is continuing; and 

(2) a Bondowners’ Trustee has been appointed; and 

70



 

-27- 
51412516.8 

(3) such owner previously shall have given to the Bondowners’ Trustee written notice 

of the Event of Default on account of which such suit, action or proceeding is to 

be instituted; and 

(4) the registered owners of 25% in principal amount of the then outstanding Parity 

Bonds have made, after the occurrence of such Event of Default, written request 

of the Bondowners’ Trustee and have afforded the Bondowners’ Trustee a 

reasonable opportunity to institute such suit, action or proceeding; and 

(5) there have been offered to the Bondowners’ Trustee security and indemnity 

satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or 

thereby; and 

(6) the Bondowners’ Trustee has refused or neglected to comply with such request 

within a reasonable time. 

No Owner of any Parity Bond shall have any right in any manner whatever by his or her 

action to affect or impair the obligation of the City to pay from the Net Revenue the principal of 

and interest on such Parity Bonds to the respective Owners thereof when due. 

Section 23. Sale and Delivery of the Bonds. 

(a) Manner of Sale of Bonds; Delivery of Bonds.  The Designated Representative is 

authorized to sell each Series of the Bonds by negotiated sale or by competitive sale in 

accordance with a notice of sale consistent with this ordinance, based on the assessment of the 

Designated Representative of market conditions, in consultation with appropriate City officials 

and staff, Bond Counsel, the Financial Advisor and other advisors. In determining the method of 

sale of a Series and accepting the Sale Terms, the Designated Representative shall take into 

account those factors that, in the judgment of the Designated Representative, may be expected to 

result in the lowest true interest cost to the City. 

(b) Procedure for Negotiated Sale or Private Placement.  If the Designated 

Representative determines that a Series of the Bonds is to be sold by negotiated sale or private 

placement, the Designated Representative shall select one or more Purchasers with whom to 

negotiate such sale. The Bond Purchase Agreement for each Series of the Bonds shall set forth 

the Sale Terms. The Designated Representative is authorized to execute the Bond Purchase 

Agreement on behalf of the City, so long as the terms provided therein are consistent with the 

terms of this ordinance. 

(c) Procedure for Competitive Sale.  If the Designated Representative determines that 

a Series of the Bonds is to be sold by competitive sale, the Designated Representative shall cause 

the preparation of an official notice of bond sale setting forth parameters for the Sale Terms and 

any other bid parameters that the Designated Representative deems appropriate consistent with 

this ordinance. Bids for the purchase of each Series of the Bonds shall be received at such time 

or place and by such means as the Designated Representative directs. On the date and time 

established for the receipt of bids, the Designated Representative (or the designee of the 

Designated Representative) shall open bids and shall cause the bids to be mathematically 

verified. The Designated Representative is authorized to award, on behalf of the City, the 

71



 

-28- 
51412516.8 

winning bid and accept the winning bidder’s offer to purchase that Series of the Bonds, with 

such adjustments to the aggregate principal amount and principal amount per maturity as the 

Designated Representative deems appropriate, consistent with the terms of this ordinance, and 

such award shall constitute the Bond Purchase Agreement. The Designated Representative may 

reject any or all bids submitted and may waive any formality or irregularity in any bid or in the 

bidding process if the Designated Representative deems it to be in the City’s best interest to do 

so. If all bids are rejected, that Series of the Bonds may be sold pursuant to negotiated sale or in 

any manner provided by law as the Designated Representative determines is in the best interest 

of the City, within the parameters set forth in this ordinance. 

(d) Preparation, Execution and Delivery of the Bonds.  The Bonds will be prepared at 

City expense and will be delivered to the Purchaser in accordance with the Bond Purchase 

Agreement, together with the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel regarding the Bonds. 

Section 24. Official Statement; Continuing Disclosure. 

(a) Preliminary Official Statement Deemed Final.  The Designated Representative 

shall review and, if acceptable to him or her, approve the preliminary Official Statement 

prepared in connection with each sale of a Series of the Bonds to the public or through a 

Purchaser as a placement agent. For the sole purpose of the Purchaser’s compliance with 

paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15c2-12, if applicable, the Designated Representative is authorized to 

deem that preliminary Official Statement final as of its date, except for the omission of 

information permitted to be omitted by Rule 15c2-12. The City approves the distribution to 

potential purchasers of the Bonds of a preliminary Official Statement that has been approved by 

the Designated Representative and been deemed final, if applicable, in accordance with this 

subsection. 

(b) Approval of Final Official Statement.  The City approves the preparation of a final 

Official Statement for each Series of the Bonds to be sold to the public in the form of the 

preliminary Official Statement that has been approved and deemed final in accordance with 

subsection (a), with such modifications and amendments as the Designated Representative deems 

necessary or desirable, and further authorizes the Designated Representative to execute and 

deliver such final Official Statement to the Purchaser if required under Rule 15c2-12. The City 

authorizes and approves the distribution by the Purchaser of the final Official Statement so 

executed and delivered to purchasers and potential purchasers of a Series of the Bonds. 

(c) Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  If necessary to meet the 

requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12, as applicable to the Purchaser acting as a 

participating underwriter for a Series of the Bonds, the Designated Representative is authorized 

to execute a written undertaking to provide continuing disclosure for the benefit of holders of a 

Series of the Bonds in substantially the form attached as Exhibit B. 

Section 25. General Authorization and Ratification.  The Designated Representative 

and other appropriate officers of the City are severally authorized to take such actions and to 

execute such documents as in their judgment may be necessary or desirable to carry out the 

transactions contemplated in connection with this ordinance, and to do everything necessary for 

the prompt delivery of each Series of the Bonds to the Purchaser thereof and for the proper 

72



 

-29- 
51412516.8 

application, use and investment of the proceeds of the Bonds. All actions taken prior to the 

effective date of this ordinance in furtherance of the purposes described in this ordinance and not 

inconsistent with the terms of this ordinance are ratified and confirmed in all respects. 

Section 26. Severability.  The provisions of this ordinance are declared to be separate 

and severable. If a court of competent jurisdiction, all appeals having been exhausted or all 

appeal periods having run, finds any provision of this ordinance to be invalid or unenforceable as 

to any person or circumstance, such offending provision shall, if feasible, be deemed to be 

modified to be within the limits of enforceability or validity. However, if the offending provision 

cannot be so modified, it shall be null and void with respect to the particular person or 

circumstance, and all other provisions of this ordinance in all other respects, and the offending 

provision with respect to all other persons and all other circumstances, shall remain valid and 

enforceable. 

Section 27. Effective Date of Ordinance.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in 

force from and after its passage and five days following its publication as required by law. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, 

Washington, at an open public meeting thereof, this 1
st
 day of March, 2016. 

 

 

 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Bond Counsel 

 

 

FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK:  

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:  

PUBLISHED:  

EFFECTIVE DATE:  

ORDINANCE NO.:  

 

73



Exhibit A 

A-1 
51412516.8 

PARAMETERS FOR SALE TERMS 

(a) Principal Amount. The Bonds may be issued in one or more Series and shall 

not exceed the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000. 

(b) Date or Dates. Each Bond shall be dated its Issue Date, which date may 

not be later than June 30, 2018. 

(c) Denominations, Name, etc. The Bonds shall be issued in Authorized Denominations 

and shall be numbered separately in the manner and shall 

bear any name and additional designation as deemed 

necessary or appropriate by the Designated Representative. 

(d) Interest Rate(s). Each Bond shall bear interest at a fixed rate per annum 

(computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 

months) from the Issue Date or from the most recent date 

for which interest has been paid or duly provided for, 

whichever is later. One or more rates of interest may be 

fixed for the Bonds. No rate of interest for any Bond may 

exceed 5.0%, and the true interest cost to the City for each 

Series of the Bonds may not exceed 4.5%. 

(e) Payment Dates. Interest shall be payable at fixed rates semiannually on 

dates acceptable to the Designated Representative, 

commencing no later than one year following the Issue 

Date. Principal payments shall commence on a date 

acceptable to the Designated Representative and shall be 

payable at maturity or in mandatory redemption 

installments, on dates acceptable to the Designated 

Representative. 

(f) Final Maturity. No Bond shall mature no later than thirty-one years after its 

Issue Date. 

(g) Redemption Rights. The Designated Representative may approve in the Bond 

Purchase Agreement provisions for the optional and 

mandatory redemption of Bonds, subject to the following: 

(1) Optional Redemption. Any Bond may be designated as 

being (A) subject to redemption at the option of the 

City prior to its maturity date on the dates and at the 

prices set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement; or (B) 

not subject to redemption prior to its maturity date. If a 

Bond is subject to optional redemption prior to its 

maturity, it must be subject to such redemption on one 

or more dates occurring not more than 10½ years after 

the Issue Date. 

74



Exhibit A 

A-2 
51412516.8 

(2) Mandatory Redemption. Any Bond may be designated 

as a Term Bond, subject to mandatory redemption prior 

to its maturity on the dates and in the amounts set forth 

in the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

(h) Price. The purchase price for each Series of the Bonds may not be 

less than 98% or more than 125% of the stated principal 

amount of that Series. 

(i) Other Terms and Conditions.  The Designated Representative may determine whether it is 

in the City’s best interest to provide for bond insurance or 

other credit enhancement; and may accept such additional 

terms, conditions and covenants as he or she may determine 

are in the best interests of the City, consistent with this 

ordinance. 

 

 

75



Exhibit B 

B-1 
51412516.8 

[Form of] 

UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016 [Series] 

 

The City of Oak Harbor, Washington (the “City”) makes the following written 

Undertaking for the benefit of the Owners of the City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 

2016 [Series] (the “Bonds”), for the sole purpose of assisting the Purchaser in meeting the 

requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12, as applicable to a participating underwriter for 

the Bonds. Capitalized terms used but not defined below shall have the meanings given in 

Ordinance No. ______ (the “Bond Ordinance”). 

(a) Undertaking to Provide Annual Financial Information and Notice of Listed 

Events.  The City undertakes to provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a 

designated agent, to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, 

accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB: 

(i) Annual financial information and operating data of the type included in the final 

Official Statement for the Bonds and described in paragraph (b) (“annual financial information”); 

(ii) Timely notice (not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event) 

of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:  (1) principal and 

interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled 

draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit 

enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or 

their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 

proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701 - TEB) 

or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds; (7) 

modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) bond calls (other than scheduled 

mandatory redemptions of Term Bonds), if material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) 

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; (11) rating 

changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City, as such 

“Bankruptcy Events” are defined in Rule 15c2-12; (13) the consummation of a merger, 

consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets 

of the City other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to 

undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such 

actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or 

additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material. 

(iii) Timely notice of a failure by the City to provide required annual financial 

information on or before the date specified in paragraph (b). 

76



Exhibit B 

B-2 
51412516.8 

(b) Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided.  The annual 

financial information that the City undertakes to provide in paragraph (a): 

(i) Shall consist of (1) annual financial statements prepared (except as noted in the 

financial statements) in accordance with applicable generally accepted accounting principles 

applicable to local governmental units such as the City, as such principles may be changed from 

time to time, which statements shall not be audited, except, however, that if and when audited 

financial statements are otherwise prepared and available to the City they will be provided; (2) a 

statement of authorized, issued and outstanding bonded debt secured by Net Revenue of the 

Waterworks Utility and ULID Assessments; (3) debt service coverage ratio for the year; and (4) 

Waterworks Utility number of customers; 

(ii) Shall be provided not later than the last day of the ninth month after the end of 

each fiscal year of the City (currently, a fiscal year ending December 31), as such fiscal year may 

be changed as required or permitted by State law, commencing with the City’s fiscal year ending 

December 31, 2015; and 

(iii) May be provided in a single or multiple documents, and may be incorporated by 

specific reference to documents available to the public on the Internet website of the MSRB or 

filed with the SEC. 

(c) Amendment of Undertaking. This Undertaking is subject to amendment after the 

primary offering of the Bonds without the consent of any holder of any Bond, or of any broker, 

dealer, municipal securities dealer, participating underwriter, Rating Agency or the MSRB, 

under the circumstances and in the manner permitted by Rule 15c2-12. The City will give notice 

to the MSRB of the substance (or provide a copy) of any amendment to the Undertaking and a 

brief statement of the reasons for the amendment. If the amendment changes the type of annual 

financial information to be provided, the annual financial information containing the amended 

financial information will include a narrative explanation of the effect of that change on the type 

of information to be provided. 

(d) Beneficiaries. This Undertaking shall inure to the benefit of the City and the 

holder of each Bond, and shall not inure to the benefit of or create any rights in any other person. 

(e) Termination of Undertaking. The City’s obligations under this Undertaking shall 

terminate upon the legal defeasance of all of the Bonds. In addition, the City’s obligations under 

this Undertaking shall terminate if the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 that require the City to comply 

with this Undertaking become legally inapplicable in respect of the Bonds for any reason, as 

confirmed by an opinion of Bond Counsel delivered to the City, and the City provides timely 

notice of such termination to the MSRB. 

(f) Remedy for Failure to Comply with Undertaking. As soon as practicable after the 

City learns of any failure to comply with this Undertaking, the City will proceed with due 

diligence to cause such noncompliance to be corrected. No failure by the City or other obligated 

person to comply with this Undertaking shall constitute a default in respect of the Bonds. The 

sole remedy of any holder of a Bond shall be to take action to compel the City or other obligated 

77



Exhibit B 

B-3 
51412516.8 

person to comply with this Undertaking, including seeking an order of specific performance from 

an appropriate court. 

(g) Designation of Official Responsible to Administer Undertaking. The Finance 

Director or his or her designee is authorized to take such further actions as may be necessary, 

appropriate or convenient to carry out this Undertaking in accordance with Rule 15c2-12, 

including the following actions: 

(i) Preparing and filing the annual financial information undertaken to be provided; 

(ii) Determining whether any event specified in paragraph (a) has occurred, assessing 

its materiality, where necessary, with respect to the Bonds, and preparing and disseminating any 

required notice of its occurrence; 

(iii) Determining whether any person other than the City is an “obligated person” 

within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 with respect to the Bonds, and obtaining from such person 

an undertaking to provide any annual financial information and notice of listed events for that 

person required under Rule 15c2-12; 

(iv) Selecting, engaging and compensating designated agents and consultants, 

including financial advisors and legal counsel, to assist and advise the City in carrying out this 

Undertaking; and 

(v) Effecting any necessary amendment of this Undertaking. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

 

 

By: 

 

 

78



 

 
51412516.8 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington (the “City”), 

hereby certify as follows: 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. ____ (the “Ordinance”) is a full, true and 

correct copy of an ordinance duly passed at a regular meeting of the City Council 

of the City held at the regular meeting place thereof on March 1, 2016, as that 

ordinance appears on the minute book of the City. 

2. The Ordinance will be in full force and effect five days after publication in the 

City’s official newspaper, which publication date is March __, 2016. 

3 A quorum of the members of the City Council was present throughout the 

meeting and a majority of the members voted in the proper manner for the 

passage of the Ordinance. 

Dated: ____________, 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

 

 

 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 

79



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-11: Support for 
OHSD Economic Impact Study

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-11.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
A resolution to support the Oak Harbor School District in its request for the Office of Economic 
Adjustment (OEA) to conduct an economic impact study of the effects of the incoming military personnel
on the community.  Please see the elements of the attached resolution for the description of purpose.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.  7.b
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-11: Support for 
OHSD Economic Impact Study

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-11.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
A resolution to support the Oak Harbor School District in its request for the Office of Economic 
Adjustment (OEA) to conduct an economic impact study of the effects of the incoming military personnel 
on the community.  Please see the elements of the attached resolution for the description of purpose.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is not budgetary fiscal impact from this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-11 OHSD Economic Impact Support

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is not budgetary fiscal impact from this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-11 OHSD Economic Impact Support

80

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456518779_at.pdf


RESOLUTION 16-11 

REQUESTING A REVIEW FROM THE OFFICE OF ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT (OEA) 

REGARDING THE EFFECTS OF PERSONNEL INCREASES AT NAVAL AIR STATION 

WHIDBEY ISLAND (NASWI), IMPACTS ON THE GREATER OAK HARBOR COMMUNITY, AND 

IMPACTS ON OAK HARBOR SCHOOLS 

WHEREAS, Naval Air Station Whidbey Island (NASWI) currently employs 7,500 military forces 

personnel, 1,200 civilian employees and 1,200 contractors, in a city of approximately 22,000 people; 

WHEREAS, NASWI is currently receiving additional EA-18G “Growlers”, which will be fully installed 

by 2020 and three P-8 squadrons from Hawaii; 

WHEREAS, NASWI projects up to a 30 percent increase in personnel due to the incoming squadrons; 

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor community, without adequate resources, may have difficulty sufficiently 

maintaining quality of life standards of the greater community due to a surge from incoming personnel;  

WHEREAS, a 30 percent increase in personnel, or approximately 2,500 people, may exceed current 

capabilities of healthcare professionals in the short and/or medium term;  

WHEREAS, pediatric services may also experience an increase in demand resulting from as many as 800 

new navy-connected children living in Oak Harbor by 2020, not accounting for local population growth; 

WHEREAS, current supply of affordable housing stocks within the Oak Harbor community may not meet 

demand of the sizeable personnel increases after on-base housing stocks are at capacity;  

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor Public Schools (OHPS) is a federally-impacted school district, because it 

resides in close proximity to, and partially on NASWI, reducing the available property tax base; 

WHEREAS, currently, over 50 percent of students in attendance at OHPS are already connected to the 

Navy;    

WHEREAS, the personnel from the additional “Growlers” are projected to bring with them up to 400 

students by 2020, and the incoming P-8 squadrons are expected to bring at least 300 new students, some 

of which have already arrived; 

WHEREAS, OHPS does not have adequate space to accommodate these students: all elementary 

classrooms are full, by the end of this school year, over 24 portable classrooms will be filled to serve 

elementary school students, and very few classrooms at the middle and high school level are available; 

WHEREAS, OHPS requires at least 22 new classrooms to accommodate all incoming students; 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR does hereby resolve as follows: 

Section 1:  The City supports the request by the Oak Harbor School District for a comprehensive review 

by the Office of Economic Adjustment (OEA) of the economic impacts of incoming military personnel on 

the community.  

81



PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this      day of 
March 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

BOB SEVERNS, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

Introduction: 

Adopted: 
Published: 

1st

82



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Professional Services Agreement 
- Feasibility Study with Carletti 
Architects for a New Fire 
Station

FROM: Ray Merrill, Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Service Agreement with Carletti Architects in the amount 
$61,200.00 to complete a feasibility study as to the need for and appropriate location of a west side fire
station.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
During the September 1, 2015 City Council meeting the Council approved moving forward with a 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Professional Services Agreement 
- Feasibility Study with Carletti 
Architects for a New Fire 
Station

FROM: Ray Merrill, Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Service Agreement with Carletti Architects in the amount 
$61,200.00 to complete a feasibility study as to the need for and appropriate location of a west side fire 
station.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
During the September 1, 2015 City Council meeting the Council approved moving forward with a During the September 1, 2015 City Council meeting the Council approved moving forward with a 
feasibility study for a west side fire station.  The request was advertised with the Daily Journal of 
Commerce and Whidbey News Times. Four (4) firms submitted proposals.  The proposals were 
reviewed and assigned a score and ranking scale.  All firms were invited to participate in an interview 
process.  Both the written proposals and interviews were evaluated.  Peter Carletti Architects  were 
chosen as the most qualified firm.  The information was presented at the January 20, 2016 Council 
workshop.      

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Total cost not to exceed $61,2000.00.  Funds are available for this study.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Scope of Services Exhibit A, Revision #2 - Fire Station
2. PSA Agreement

During the September 1, 2015 City Council meeting the Council approved moving forward with a 
feasibility study for a west side fire station.  The request was advertised with the Daily Journal of 
Commerce and Whidbey News Times. Four (4) firms submitted proposals.  The proposals were 
reviewed and assigned a score and ranking scale.  All firms were invited to participate in an interview 
process.  Both the written proposals and interviews were evaluated.  Peter Carletti Architects  were 
chosen as the most qualified firm.  The information was presented at the January 20, 2016 Council 
workshop.      

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Total cost not to exceed $61,2000.00.  Funds are available for this study.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Scope of Services Exhibit A, Revision #2 - Fire Station
2. PSA Agreement

83

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456426252_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=63efaca71baf8ac9281c740508e201c7&aName=1456418316_at.pdf


84



85



86



87



1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY 

OF Oak Harbor AND  Peter 

Carletti P.S.  CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City of 

 Oak Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and  Peter Carletti Architects P.S., a 

Washington ("Consultant") [ P.S.;] . 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances contained 

herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 

A feasibility study for a new fire station located in the southwest quadrant of the City of Oak Harbor, as 

described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship between the City and the 

Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference (“Scope of 

Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks outlined in the Scope of Services 

shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All 

such services shall be provided in accordance with the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 

ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, amendments, or 

revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City when such changes 

will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, 

involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render services in 

connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by the expressed intent of 

the Scope of Services in the scope of services. Such work will be considered as extra work and will 

be specified in a written supplement to the scope of services, to be signed by both parties, which will 

set forth the nature and the scope thereof. All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared 

by the Consultant at no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 

executed in writing by the parties. 

III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS. The work product and all documents produced under 

88



2  

this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon completion of the work 

shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant may retain one copy of the work 

product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be responsible for the accuracy of the 

work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 

 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this Agreement 

shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the Consultant, 

along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shall become the property of 

the City. Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and summary to the City. 

Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The 

summary of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement or 

modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement without the 

written authorization of Consultant. 

 

III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on February 17, 2016 and shall 

terminate at midnight, December 31, 2016.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement by 

written mutual agreement. 

 

III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be assigned or 

subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 

 

III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the performance of 

any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall be considered employees 

of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all claims that may or might arise under the 

Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees while so engaged, and any and all 

claims made by any third party as a consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the 

Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be 

the sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 

III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the 

City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 

damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or 

omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages 

caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 

then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to 

property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and the City, its 

89



3  

officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost 

to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further 

specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 

Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes 

of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of 

this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

III.7 INSURANCE. 

 

a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 

Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 

arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its 

agents, representatives or employees. 

 

b. No Limitation.  Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement shall not 

be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such insurance, 

or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any remedy available at law or in equity. 

 

c. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types and 

coverage described below: 

 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 

vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 

or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO occurrence 

form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop-gap 

independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be 

named as an additional insured under the Consultant's Commercial General Liability 

insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City using an additional 

insured endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 

3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington. 

 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession. 
 

 

 

 

 

d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance. Consultant shall maintain the following insurance 

limits: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 

injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

90



4  

$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

 

3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less than 

$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant's Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be 

primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool 

coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not 

contribute with it. 

 

f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

 

g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and 

a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not necessarily limited to, the 

additional insured endorsement evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant 

before commencement of the work. 

 

h. Notice of Cancellation. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any 

policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

 

i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the 

insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City may, 

after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately 

terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all 

premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on 

demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the 

City. 

 

j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant maintains higher 

insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the full 

available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability maintained by the 

Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by the Consultant are greater than 

those required by this contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City 

evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 

 

 

 

III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity employment and not to 

discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for services because of race, 

creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 

status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with 

regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or 

91



5  

any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 

selection for training, rendition of services. The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) 

notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this 

Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from 

performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made satisfactory to the 

City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 

III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, the 

Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment practices. 

 

III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and 

ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant represents that the 

firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full compliance with the statutes of 

the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and that all personnel to be assigned to 

the work required under this Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work 

to which they will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 

the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in 

Island County Superior Court. 

 

III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 

a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is an 

independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this Agreement.  The 

Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status as an independent 

contractor in the performance of the work and services required under this Agreement is 

consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 

or as hereafter amended. The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire 

responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  

The Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 

employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 

 

 

 

 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and assessments, 

including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security tax, assessments for 

unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from income which may be required 

by law or assessed against either party as a result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is 

assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same 

before it becomes due. 

c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent contractors to 

perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder. 

 

d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license from the 

92



6  

City. 

 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of any potential 

conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written permission from the City prior 

to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential conflict of interest is apparent. If 

the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to 

terminate this Agreement. 

 

III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES. The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, and will not 

disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior written consent from the 

City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information regarding the City or services 

provided to the City. 

 

III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 

 

a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by 

subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they directly hire meet the 

responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a subcontractor/subconsultant has proper 

license and bonding, if required by statute, must be included in the verification process. The 

Consultant will use the following Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit  A: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants without the written 

approval of the City. 

 

d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages and limits as set 

forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification of said insurance 

coverage. 

93



7  

ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 

IV.1 PAYMENTS. 

 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this Agreement as 

described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section. In no event shall the 

compensation paid to Consultant under this Agreement exceed Sixty One Thousand and Two 

Hundred Dollars ($ 61,200.00) without the written agreement of the Consultant and the City. 

Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and services rendered and for all 

labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In the 

event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in Exhibit "A", the City 

shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 

b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services performed in the 

previous calendar month in a format acceptable to the City. The Consultant shall maintain 

time and expense records and provide them to the City upon request. 

 

c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 20th of each 

month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

 

IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent contractor, 

results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of the City, 

which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance with the 

Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 

IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS. The Consultant shall maintain all books, 

records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses allowable under this 

Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All such books and records 

required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to inspection and audit by 

representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the 

Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City 

and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to 

conduct or document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of 

account and records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement.  In the 

event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant 

shall provide the City with appropriate clarification and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) 

calendar days of notification of the discrepancy. 

94



8  

ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 

V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: Mayor 

City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive Oak Harbor, 

WA 98277 

 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

 

Peter Carletti,  

Carletti Architects P.S. 

116 E Fir St. Suite A 

Mount Vernon WA 98273 

 

 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written notice in the 

U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 

 

V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in whole or in part 

at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 

 

If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City shall pay the 

Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in accordance with 

payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 

V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and compromise, 

any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a mutually agreed-upon 

alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION. This Agreement, together with attachments or 

addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior 

negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, 

modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be 

illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be 

affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as if the 

Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory provision of the State 

of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed inoperative and null and 

void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory 

95



9  

provision. 

 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of any 

covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in default to avail 

itself of any subsequent breach thereof. Leniency, delay or failure of either party to insist upon strict 

performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this Agreement, or to exercise any right 

herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of 

any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 
 

V.7 FAIR MEANING. The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and shall not be 

construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship. This Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 
 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Washington. 
 

V.9 VENUE. The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior 

Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 
 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 
 

V.11 AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT. The undersigned 

represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind the parties for and 

on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 

DATED this  16
th

 day of February, 2016. 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR Carletti Architects 
 

By    By  Peter Carletti Architect  

 Robert Severns , Mayor  

Approved as to form: 
 

 
 

City Attorney 

 

Attest: 
 

 
 

City Clerk 
 

 

96



10  

EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF WORK 

97



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Discussion of Property 
Acquisition regarding Wells 
Fargo 

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Enter into Executive Session to discuss property acquisition regarding Wells Fargo.  

Reconvene into Open Session to take possible action.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (b)

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: March 1, 2016

Subject: Discussion of Property 
Acquisition regarding Wells 
Fargo 

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Enter into Executive Session to discuss property acquisition regarding Wells Fargo.  

Reconvene into Open Session to take possible action.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (b)RCW 42.30.110 (b)

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

RCW 42.30.110 (b)

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

98


	Regular Agenda for the March 1, 2016 Council Meeting
	2.a.i  Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick's Day - Accepted by the Irish Wildlife Society 
	 Proclamation

	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the Regular Meeting held February 16, 2016, and Workshop meeting on February 24, 2016
	 2/16/2016 Minutes
	 2/24/2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Numbers
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)
	 Voucher Listing (3)

	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff
	 Report

	7.a  Ordinance No. 1756: Issuance of Waterworks Utility Bonds
	 Ordinance No. 1756

	7.b  Resolution 16-11: Support for OHSD Economic Impact Study
	 Resolution 16-11 OHSD Economic Impact Support

	8.a  Professional Services Agreement - Feasibility Study with Carletti Architects for a New Fire Station
	 Scope of Services Exhibit A, Revision #2 - Fire Station 
	 PSA Agreement

	11.a  Discussion of Property Acquisition regarding Wells Fargo 



